Howard Bancorp Inc Form DEF 14A April 11, 2018 UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSIO Washington, D.C. 20549	ON			
SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION				
Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of th Securities Exchange Act of 1934	2			
Filed by the Registrant Filed	by a Party other than the Registrant			
Check the appropriate box:				
Preliminary Proxy Statement				
Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only	(as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))			
Definitive Proxy Statement				
Definitive Additional Materials				
Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12				
Howard Bancorp, Inc. (Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)				
(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if o	ther than the Registrant)			
Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate b	ox):			
No fee required.				
Fee computed on table below per Exchange A	ct Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.			
(1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:				
(2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:				
Per unit price or other underlying value of (3) the amount on which the filing fee is calcu	transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth lated and state how it was determined):			
(4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of tra	nsaction:			
(5) Total fee paid:				

Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.

Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing

- (1) Amount previously paid:
- (2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
- (3) Filing party:
- (4) Date Filed:

3301 BOSTON STREET BALTIMORE, MARYLAND 21224

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY, MAY 23, 2018, AT 11:30 A.M.

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Meeting") of Howard Bancorp, Inc. ("Howard" or the "Company") will be held on Wednesday, May 23, 2018 at 11:30 a.m. (local time) at the corporate offices of Howard located at 3301 Boston Street, Baltimore, MD 21224, to consider and act upon the following matters:

To elect five Class I directors to serve for a three-year term expiring at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders in 2021 and until their successors are elected and qualify; to elect two Class II directors to serve for the remainder of a 1. three-year term expiring at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders in 2019 and until their successors are elected and qualify; and to elect two Class III directors to serve for the remainder of a three-year term expiring at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders in 2019 and until their successors are elected and qualify; and to elect two Class III directors to serve for the remainder of a three-year term expiring at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders in 2020 and until their successors are elected and qualify;

2. To approve a non-binding advisory proposal to approve the compensation of Howard's named executive officers;

3. To ratify the appointment of Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm to audit the Company's financial statements for 2018; and

4. To transact any other business that may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the meeting.

Any action may be taken on the foregoing at the meeting on the date specified above or on any date or dates to which the Meeting may be adjourned. Only stockholders of record as of the close of business on March 29, 2018 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the Meeting.

You are requested to vote promptly by Internet, telephone or by completing, signing, and mailing the enclosed proxy card regardless of whether you expect to attend the Meeting. If you are present at the Meeting, you may vote in person even if you already have sent in your proxy.

If you have questions pertaining to the foregoing, please contact the Company at (410) 750-0020.

By Order of the Board of Directors <u>/s/ Charles E. Schwabe</u>

Charles E. Schwabe, Corporate Secretary April 10, 2018

This proxy statement is first being sent to the stockholders of Howard on or about April 10, 2018.

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS OF HOWARD TO BE HELD ON MAY 23, 2018: The Proxy Statement, proxy

card and Annual Report on 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 are available at www.howardbank.com.

3301 BOSTON STREET BALTIMORE, MARYLAND 21224

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS PROXY STATEMENT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
GENERAL INFORMATION	4
SECURITIES OWNERSHIP OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS	6
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	9
ITEM 1. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	13
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION	20
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	21
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	24
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	24
Compensation Committee Report	32
Compensation Committee Interlocks And Insider Participation	32
Summary Compensation Table for 2017	33
Grants of Plan-Based Awards for 2017	35
Outstanding Equity Awards	36
Option Exercises and Stock Vested for 2017	37
Pension Benefits for 2017	37
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control	37
2017 CEO Pay Ratio Disclosure	39
Employment Agreements	39
Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans	43
ITEM 2: NON-BINDING ADVISORY VOTE ON THE COMPENSATION OF OUR NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	44
ITEM 3. RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM	45
Audit Committee Report	45
Fees to Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	46

Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 46

OTHER MATTERS 47

STOCKHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS	47
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS	47
SECTION 16(A) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE	47
STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS AND NOMINATIONS FOR THE HOWARD 2019 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS	48

GENERAL INFORMATION

Introduction

Howard Bancorp, Inc. ("Howard" or the "Company") is holding its 2018 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Meeting") on Wednesday, May 23, 2018. This proxy statement is being sent on or about April 10, 2018, in connection with the solicitation by the Board of Directors of Howard (the "Board of Directors" or the "Board") of proxies to be voted at the Meeting and at any adjournment or postponement thereof.

Howard is furnishing this proxy statement over the Internet to most stockholders. These stockholders will not receive printed copies of the proxy statement and proxy card, and instead will receive a Notice of Internet Availability (the "Notice") containing instructions on how to access the proxy materials over the Internet. In addition, the Notice contains instructions on how to request proxy materials in printed form by mail or electronically on an ongoing basis. This process has allowed Howard to expedite its stockholders' receipt of proxy materials, lower the costs of distribution and reduce the environmental impact of the Meeting.

Meeting Location, Date and Time

The Meeting will be held at Howard's Corporate Offices located at 3301 Boston Street, Baltimore, Maryland, on Wednesday, May 23, 2018, at 11:30 a.m. To obtain directions to attend the meeting, contact the Secretary at (410) 750-0020.

Stockholders Entitled to Vote

Stockholders of record at the close of business on March 29, 2018 (the "record date"), are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Meeting in person or by proxy. On the record date, Howard had outstanding 18,991,026 shares of common stock.

Required Vote

A majority of the shares outstanding and entitled to vote constitutes a quorum to transact business at the Meeting. Each share is entitled to one vote on each proposal.

The required vote for each proposal is as follows:

- \cdot Directors will be elected by the affirmative vote of a plurality of the shares cast at the Meeting.
- The approval of the non-binding advisory vote to approve Howard's executive compensation the affirmative vote of
- holders of a majority of the votes cast on the proposal by Howard stockholders at the Meeting, which we refer to as the executive compensation proposal.
- The ratification of the selection of Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP ("Dixon Hughes Goodman") as independent auditor
- \cdot will be approved by the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the votes cast on the proposal by Howard stockholders at the Meeting, which we refer to as the auditor proposal.

While abstentions and broker non-votes are counted as shares present at the meeting for purposes of determining a quorum, they are not otherwise counted and, therefore, will have no effect on the outcome of the election of directors, the executive compensation proposal or the auditor proposal.

Applicable rules determine whether proposals presented at stockholder meetings are considered routine or non-routine. If a proposal is considered routine, a bank, broker or other holder of record which holds shares for an owner in street name generally may vote on the proposal without receiving voting instructions from the beneficial owner. If a proposal is non-routine, the bank, broker or other holder of record generally may vote on the proposal only

if the beneficial owner has provided voting instructions. A "broker non-vote" occurs when a broker or other entity returns a signed proxy card but does not vote shares on a particular proposal because the proposal is not a routine matter and the broker or other entity has not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner of the shares. The ratification of the selection of Dixon Hughes Goodman as independent auditor is considered a routine matter, while the other proposals, i.e., the election of directors and the executive compensation proposal, are considered non-routine matters.

All valid proxies received by Howard will be voted in accordance with the instructions indicated in such proxies. As noted above, if you hold your shares through a bank, broker or other holder of record and you do not give voting instructions, your bank, broker or other record holder of the shares is not permitted to vote your shares on any proposal other than the auditor proposal, which is the only routine proposal on the agenda. If no instructions are indicated in an otherwise properly executed proxy, it will be voted "FOR" each of the director nominees named in this proxy statement, "FOR" the executive compensation proposal, FOR the auditor proposal and on all other matters in accordance with the recommendations of the Board.

How to Vote

Stockholders of record can vote in person at the Meeting or by proxy without attending the Meeting. To vote by proxy:

(1)Vote by Internet (instructions are on the Notice or the proxy card),

(2) Vote by telephone (instructions are on the Notice or on the proxy card), or

(2) If you received a printed copy of this proxy statement, complete the enclosed proxy card and sign, date and return it in the enclosed postage-paid envelope.

If you hold your shares through a bank, broker or other holder of record, your bank, broker or agent will provide you with materials and instructions for voting your shares. If you hold your shares through a bank, broker or other holder of record, and you plan to vote in person at the Meeting, you should contact your bank, broker or agent to obtain a legal proxy or broker's proxy card and bring it to the meeting in order to vote in person.

You will receive multiple Notices or printed copies of the proxy materials if you hold your shares in different ways (e.g., individually, by joint tenancy, through a trust or custodial account, etc.) or in multiple accounts. Please vote the shares represented by each Notice or proxy card you receive to ensure that all of your shares are voted.

Revoking Your Proxy

If you are a stockholder of record, you may revoke your proxy at any time before it is voted by written notice to the Secretary, by revocation at the meeting, by delivery to the Secretary of a subsequently dated proxy card or by submitting a later vote by Internet (instructions are on the Notice or the proxy card). In the case of multiple submissions regarding the same shares, the proxy with the latest date will be counted. The address for the Secretary is Howard Bancorp, Inc., 3301 Boston Street, Baltimore, Maryland 21224.

If you hold your shares through a bank, broker or other holder of record and you do not plan to vote in person at the Meeting, you should contact your bank, broker or agent to revoke your proxy or change your vote.

Voting on Other Matters

The Board of Directors is not aware of any additional matters to be brought before the meeting. If other matters do come before the meeting, the persons named in the accompanying proxy or their substitutes will vote the shares represented by such proxies in accordance with the recommendations of the Board of Directors.

Cost of Proxy Solicitation

Solicitation of proxies will be primarily by mail, telephone and electronic delivery. Employees of Howard and its subsidiaries may be used to solicit proxies by means of telephone or personal contact but will not receive any additional compensation for doing so. Banks, brokers, trustees and nominees will be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred in sending proxy materials to the beneficial owners of such shares. The total cost of the solicitation

of proxies will be borne by Howard.

SECURITIES OWNERSHIP OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS

The following table sets forth, as of March 29, 2018 (except as otherwise noted), information with respect to the beneficial ownership of Howard's common stock by each director, by its executive officers and by all of its directors and executive officers as a group, as well as information regarding each other person that we believe owns in excess of 5% of the outstanding common stock. Unless otherwise noted below, we believe that each person named in the table has or will have the sole voting and sole investment power with respect to each of the securities reported as owned by such person.

			Shares Underlying Stock			
		Number of	Options		Percent	
		Shares	Exercisable		of	
		Beneficially	Within 60		Commor	ı
Position		Owned (1)	Days	Total	Shares	
Board of Directors:						
Richard G. Arnold	Director	127,681	5,375	133,056	*	
W. Gary Dorsch (2)	Director	257,713		257,713	1.36	%
James T. Drescher, Jr. (3)	Director	374,081		374,081	1.97	%
Howard Feinglass (4)	Director	2,837,303		2,837,303	14.94	%
Michael B. High (5)	Director	41		41	*	
Donna Hill Staton	Director	13,626		13,626	*	
John J. Keenan	Director	7,645		7,645	*	
Robert D. Kunisch, Jr.	Director and President	124,680		124,680	*	
Paul I. Latta, Jr.	Director	91,574	9,377	100,951	*	
Kenneth C. Lundeen (6)	Director	159,955	3,405	163,360	*	
Thomas P. O'Neill	Director	23,711		23,711	*	
	Director, Chairman of Board					
Mary Ann Scully (7)	and Chief Executive Officer	135,713		135,713	*	
Robert W. Smith, Jr.	Director	35,678		35,678	*	
Jack E. Steil	Director	46,740		46,740	*	
Executive Officers:						
Robert A. Altieri	Executive Vice President	15,152		15,152	*	
	Executive Vice President	10,102		10,102		
	Chief Financial Officer					
George C. Coffman (8)	and Treasurer	63,141		63,141	*	
Thomas (Randy) Jones	Executive Vice President	1,000		1,000	*	
Steven M. Poynot	Executive Vice President	6,269		6,269	*	
<i>Ste</i> / <i>e</i> 1/1/1 / <i>c y</i> 1/00	Executive Vice President	0,207		0,207		
Charles E. Schwabe (9)	and Secretary	46,773		46,773	*	
James D. Witty	Executive Vice President	9,125		9,125	*	
		4,377,601	18,157	4,395,758	23.15	%
		.,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	10,107	.,,		,.

<u>5% Stockholders:</u>	Number of Shares Beneficially Owned (1)	Shares Underlying Stock Options Exercisable Within 60 Days	Total	Percent of Common Shares	n
Entities Affiliated with Priam Capital Fund I, LP (10) 745 Fifth Ave, Suite 1702 New York, NY 10151 Entities Affiliated with Patriot Financial Partners II, L.P. (11)	2,837,262		2,837,262	14.94	%
 Entities Affiliated with T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. (12) 100 E. Pratt Street 	1,662,399		1,662,399	8.75	%
Baltimore, MD 21202 * Less than 1%	1,380,536		1,380,536	7.30	%

For purposes of this table, beneficial ownership has been determined in accordance with the provisions of Rule 13d-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), under which, in general, a person is

(1) deemed to be the beneficial owner of a security if he has or shares the power to vote or direct the voting of the security or the power to dispose of or direct the disposition of the security, or if he has the right to acquire beneficial ownership of the security within 60 days.

Includes 249,360 shares of common stock held by Keyser-First Mariner LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of Keyser Capital, LLC, a private equity and real estate investment company where Mr. Dorsch serves as President

- (2) Keyser Capital, LLC, a private equity and real estate investment company where Mr. Dorsch serves as President and disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares of common stock, and 8,312 shares of common stock held by MidAtlantic IRA, LLC FBO William G, Dorsch Roth IRA of which he has beneficial ownership. Includes 374,040 shares of common stock held by Skye Fund III, LLC a wholly owned subsidiary of Skye Asset
- (3)Management, LLC where Mr. Dresher serves as Chief Executive Officer and may be deemed to have beneficial ownership of, and sole voting and dispositive power over, securities held directly by Skye Fund III, LLC.
 Includes 2.827.262 shares of common stack hereficially owned by Prior Conital Fund L LP ("Prior Conital I") Statements of the security of the
- (4) Includes 2,837,262 shares of common stock beneficially owned by Priam Capital Fund I, LP ("Priam Capital I"). See footnote (10) below.

Mr. High is a partner of Patriot Financial Partners GP II, L.P. ("Patriot GP II"), which is the general partner of the Patriot Funds II (as defined in footnote (11) below), and by Patriot Financial Partners GP II, LLC ("Patriot II LLC"),

(5) which is the general partner of Patriot GP II and currently serves as the representative of Patriot Funds II on the Board of Directors. Mr. High has no voting or investment power over any shares held by the Patriot Funds II or their affiliates and disclaims any beneficial ownership of such shares. See footnote (11) below. Includes 25,600 shares held in an Individual Retirement Account in the name of Mr. Lundeen. Also includes 6,668

(6) shares held by Mr. Lundeen's spouse and 14,674 shares held in trust by Mr. Lundeen's spouse as trustee for benefit of members of her family, of which Mr. Lundeen disclaims beneficial ownership.

 Includes 25,547 shares held in an Individual Retirement Account in the name of Ms. Scully.

(8) Includes 9,803 shares held in an Individual Retirement Account in the name of Mr.

Coffman.

(9)

Includes 6,849 shares held in an Individual Retirement Account in the name of Mr. Schwabe.

Priam Capital I, Priam Capital Associates, LLC and Howard Feinglass jointly reported in a Schedule 13D filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on March 12, 2018, reporting that they each have sole voting and dispositive power of 2,837,262 shares of common stock. Priam Capital Associates, LLC ("Priam

(10)Capital GP") is the general partner of Priam Capital I and Mr. Feinglass serves as managing partner of Priam Capital GP and may be deemed to have beneficial ownership of, and sole voting and dispositive power over, securities held directly by Priam Capital. Mr. Feinglass is the founder of Priam Capital and serves on the board of directors of the Company.

Patriot Financial Partners II, L.P. and its affiliates jointly reported in a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on March 12, 2018, that Patriot Financial Partners II, L.P. has shared voting and dipositive power of 1,259,464 shares of common stock, and Patriot Financial Partners Parallel II LP. (together, the "Patriot Funds II") has shared voting and dispositive power of 402,935 shares of common stock. The Patriot Funds II's voting and dispositive power is held by Patriot GP II, which is the general partner of the Patriot Funds II, and by Patriot II LLC, which is the general

(11) by ratio of H, which is the general parties of the ratio runds H, and by ratio H EEC, which is the general partner of Patriot GP II, and by W. Kirk Wycoff, Ira M. Lubert, and James J. Lynch who serve as the general partners of the Funds and Patriot GP II and as the members of Patriot II LLC. Mr. Wycoff, Mr. Lubert, and Mr. Lynch each disclaim beneficial ownership of such shares of common stock, except to the extent of their respective pecuniary interest in the funds. Mr. High currently serves as the representative of Patriot Funds II on the Board of Directors of the Company.

T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. and T. Rowe Price Small-Cap Value Fund, Inc. jointly reported in a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 14, 2018, that T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. has sole voting power of

(12) 354,868 shares of common stock and sole dispositive power of 1,380,536 shares of common stock, and that T. Rowe Price Small-Cap Value Fund, Inc. has sole voting power of 938,307 shares of common stock.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

General

The Board of Directors of the Company met 14 times during 2017. All members of the Board of Directors attended at least 75% of the meetings held by the Board of Directors and by all committees on which such member served during 2017. There currently are six standing committees of our Board of Directors:

Asset-Liability Committee Audit Committee Compensation Committee Executive Committee Governance and Nominating Committee Strategic Growth Initiatives Committee

Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors is committed to fulfill its responsibilities to stockholders and other Company stakeholders consistent with sound corporate governance policies adopted by the Board on behalf of the Company that incorporate the best contemporary standards and practices. Among other polices, we have adopted a code of conduct that applies to our employees, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, and a separate code of conduct that applies to our non-employee directors. These policies provide our directors, senior management and all our employees with a framework that defines responsibilities, sets high standards of professional and personal conduct, and promotes compliance with the various financial, ethical, legal and other obligations and responsibilities applicable to the Company.

The Company's codes of conduct and other corporate governance policies can be viewed at Howard Bank's website www.howardbank.com under Investor Relations – Corporate Governance – Governance Documents.

Board Independence

The Board of Directors has determined that all of the current directors as well as each person who served as a director during 2017, except for Mr. Kunisch, Ms. Scully and Mr. Steil, are independent directors as determined under the definition of independence set forth in the rules and listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market, LLC ("Nasdaq"). In making this determination, the Board of Directors considered the transactions and relationships disclosed under "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" below.

Board Leadership Structure; Lead Independent Director

Currently, our Chief Executive Officer also serves as the Chairman of the Board. The Company believes this leadership structure is most appropriate for us because we believe having the CEO serve as Chairman fosters an alignment of various Company leadership duties and having the person most familiar with all aspects of the Company's day to day operations lead the Board enhances accountability and effectiveness.

In addition to the Chairman of the Board, the Board of Directors has established the position of Lead Independent Director. Mr. Smith currently serves as the Lead Independent Director.

The Lead Independent Director provides leadership to and reports to the Board focused on enhancing effective corporate governance, provides a source of Board leadership complementary to, collaborative with and independent of the leadership of the Board Chair/CEO, and promotes best practices and high standards of corporate governance.

The Lead Independent Director serves as a member of the Executive Committee, the Governance and Nominating Committee and any other committee of the Board to which he is appointed.

Board's Role in Risk Oversight

The Board of Directors has an active role in overseeing and monitoring our risk management processes. The Board has appointed a Chief Risk Officer responsible for the strategic management of all enterprise risk – credit, compliance, operational, cyber and physical security. The Board of Directors regularly reviews information regarding the Company's asset quality, securities portfolio, capital, liquidity, compensation, financial reporting, strategic plan, products, security and operations. The Board of Directors oversees the risk management process through correlated committee processes and through Board management of, and/or participation in, these committees. The Compensation Committee is responsible for overseeing the management of risks related to our executive and non-executive compensation plans. The Audit Committee has responsibility for oversight of financial reporting, information technology, security and regulatory risks. The Governance and Nominating Committee manages risk associated with the Board of Directors, including independence and competence of the directors. The Asset-Liability Committee is responsible for oversight of the management of risks associated with our policies and procedures related to financial management, interest rate sensitivity, liquidity, investment and capital.

We also have an outsourced internal audit provider that reports to the Audit Committee. On an annual basis, or more frequently if required, the Audit Committee approves a schedule of internal reviews and audits for this firm to complete. This firm reports the findings from these reviews and audits to the Audit Committee on at least a quarterly basis. The Chair of the Audit Committee makes a full report of each finding to the full Board of Directors. The Board of Directors does not believe that the administration of its risk oversight function has had any effect on its leadership structure as described above.

Committees of the Board of Directors

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors of the Company has established a standing Audit Committee in accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Exchange Act. The Audit Committee is responsible for: the selection, review and oversight of the Company's independent registered public accounting firm and the outsourced internal audit company; the approval of all audit, review and attest services provided by the independent public accounting firm; the integrity of the Company's reporting practices; and evaluation of the Company's internal controls and accounting procedures. It also periodically reviews audit reports with the Company's independent public accounting firm. The Board of Directors has adopted a written charter for the Audit Committee, a copy of which can be viewed at Howard Bank's website www.howardbank.com under Investor Relations – Corporate Governance – Governance Documents. The Audit Committee is independent, as determined under the definition of independence set forth in the rules and listing standards of Nasdaq. During 2017 the Audit Committee met eight times. The Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Keenan is an "audit committee financial expert" as that term is defined by the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC").

The Audit Committee is also responsible for the pre-approval of all non-audit services provided by the Company's independent registered public accounting firm. Non-audit services are only provided by the Company's auditors to the extent permitted by law. Pre-approval is required unless a "de minimis" exception is met. To qualify for the "de minimis" exception: the aggregate amount of all such non-audit services provided to the Company must constitute not more than five percent of the total amount of revenues paid by the Company to its independent public accounting firm during the fiscal year in which the non-audit services are provided; such services were not recognized by the Company at the time of the engagement to be non-audit services; and the non-audit services are promptly brought to the attention of the Committee and approved prior to the completion of the audit by the Committee or by one or more members of the Committee to whom authority to grant such approval has been delegated by the Committee.

Governance and Nominating Committee

The Governance and Nominating Committee is responsible for: assisting, advising and making recommendations to the Board of Directors on corporate governance matters, including the identification, selection, and recommendation of qualified individuals to become Board members; selecting and recommending that the Board approve the director nominees for the annual meeting of stockholders; developing and recommending to the Board a set of corporate governance guidelines; developing and recommending a Board committee structure and recommending the membership and chairs of committees; overseeing the evaluations of the Board; and overseeing the succession planning for the Chief Executive Officer. The charter for the Governance and Nominating Committee can be viewed at Howard Bank's website www.howardbank.com under Investor Relations – Corporate Governance – Governance Documents.

The Governance and Nominating Committee identifies nominees for the Board of Directors by first evaluating the current Board members willing to continue serving as directors. Current Board members with skills and experience that are relevant to our business and who are willing to continue their service are first considered for re-nomination, balancing the value of continuity of service by existing members of the Board with that of obtaining new skills, backgrounds and perspective, in light of our developing needs. If a vacancy exists, the Committee solicits suggestions for director candidates from a number of sources, which can include other Board members, management, and individuals personally known to members of the Board.

Pursuant to our guidelines for selecting potential new board members, in selecting and evaluating persons to recommend to the Board as nominees for director, the Governance and Nominating Committee strives to select persons who have high integrity and relevant experience and who bring a diverse set of appropriate skills and backgrounds to the Board. In this regard, the Governance and Nominating Committee also gives consideration to matching the geographic base of candidates with the geographic coverage of the Company, and to diversity on the Board that reflects the community that we serve. The Governance and Nominating Committee will also take into account whether a candidate satisfies the criteria for "independence" under Nasdaq's listing standards. These factors are subject to change from time to time.

The Governance and Nominating Committee also evaluates candidates for nomination to the Board of Directors who are recommended by stockholders. Stockholders who wish to recommend individuals for consideration by the Governance and Nominating Committee to become nominees for election to the Board may do so by submitting a written recommendation to the Company's Secretary at its executive offices. Submissions must include, among other things: (i) all information relating to such person that would indicate such person's qualification to serve on the Board of Directors, including that information set forth in Article I, Section 1.10 of our Bylaws and (ii) such other information relating to such person that is required to be disclosed in connection with solicitations of proxies for election of directors pursuant to the proxy rules under the Exchange Act, or any successor rule thereto. A written consent of the individual to stand for election if nominated and to serve if elected by the stockholders must accompany the submission. The Governance and Nominating Committee will consider recommendations received by a date not later than 90 days nor earlier than 120 days prior to the anniversary date of the mailing of the Company's proxy materials in connection with the prior year's annual meeting of stockholders for nomination at the next annual meeting. The Governance and Nominating Committee will consider nominations received beyond that date at the annual meeting subsequent to the next annual meeting. For more information see the Section entitled "Stockholder Proposals And Nominations For The Howard 2019 Annual Meeting Of Stockholders."

There is no difference in the manner in which the Governance and Nominating Committee evaluates candidates for membership on the Board based on whether such candidate is recommended by a stockholder, the Governance and Nominating Committee, a director or by any other source. No submission for Board nominees by a stockholder was received by the Company with respect to the Meeting.

The Governance and Nominating Committee is currently comprised of Ms. Hill Staton, the Chair, and Messrs. High, Latta, O'Neill and Smith. Each member of the Committee is independent, as determined under the definition of independence set forth in Nasdaq's rules and listing standards. During 2017 the Governance and Nominating Committee met seven times.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee assists, advises and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors on executive and director compensation matters, including evaluating and recommending to the Board compensation and benefit plans for executives and directors of the Company, as well as evaluating the performance of the Company's executives. The Compensation Committee also has been delegated responsibility for making certain compensation decisions relating to the Company's executives and under the Company's equity compensation plans. The Compensation Committee solicits the recommendation of our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer with respect to compensation determinations concerning the other executive officers of the Company, but does not delegate its authority with respect to compensation matters to any other person.

The Compensation Committee also may request others, including compensation consultants and legal counsel, to attend meetings or to provide relevant information to assist the committee in its work. The Compensation Committee also has the authority to retain compensation and benefits consultants and legal counsel used to assist the Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities.

With respect to 2017 compensation, the Compensation Committee was generally advised by ChaseCompGroup, a Division of Arthur J. Gallagher & Co., ("ChaseCompGroup"), as its independent compensation consultant. In light of Howard's growth and the anticipated merger with First Mariner Bank (the "Merger"), in September 2017 the Compensation Committee engaged Pearl Meyer & Partners, LLC ("Pearl Meyer") to replace ChaseCompGroup as its independent compensation consultant. Both ChaseCompGroup and Pearl Meyer have provided the Compensation Committee with information, analyses and advice to aid in the determination of competitive executive and non-employee director compensation consistent with Howard's compensation philosophy. Neither ChaseCompGroup nor Pearl Meyer provided (or provides) any consulting services to Howard other than to the Compensation Committee in connection with director and executive pay, and neither maintained (or maintains) any other financial or other relationship with Howard. The Compensation Committee assessed the independence of ChaseCompGroup and Pearl Meyer pursuant to SEC and Nasdaq rules and has concluded that the advice it has received from them is objective and not influenced by other relationships that could be viewed as conflicts of interest.

The charter for the Committee can be viewed at Howard Bank's website www.howardbank.com under Investor Relations – Corporate Governance – Governance Documents.

The Compensation Committee is currently comprised of Mr. Latta, the Chair, Messrs. Dresher, Feinglass, Lundeen and Smith, and Ms. Hill Staton. Each member of the Committee is independent, as determined under the definition of independence set forth Nasdaq's rules and listing standards. During 2017 the Compensation Committee met seven times.

Director Attendance at Annual Meetings

It is our policy that all members of the Board of Directors are expected to attend the annual meeting of stockholders in the absence of an unavoidable conflict. All of our directors at the time of our 2017 Annual Meeting of Stockholders were in attendance at such meeting except for Mr. Morgan, who was unable to attend.

Director Stock Ownership Policy

We have a policy that requires all newly elected directors to commit to a minimum investment of five times the annual cash retainer component of the director's compensation, fixed at the time of the director's initial election to the Board. The minimum investment may be acquired over up to a five-year period and includes stock awarded as a component of director compensation. As of December 31, 2017, all of our directors were in compliance with this policy. 12

ITEM 1. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company's Bylaws provide that the number of directors may be increased or decreased by our Board of Directors. The number of directors is currently fixed at 14. The directors of the Company are divided into three classes - Class I, Class II and Class III - each class consisting of an equal number of directors, or as nearly equal as possible. The Board of Directors believes that the staggered terms of the Board of Directors help to assure the continuity and stability of the Company's business strategies and policies. Each director of the Company also serves as a director of Howard Bank (the "Bank").

Typically, one class of directors is elected at each annual meeting of stockholders to hold office for a term of three years and until their successors have been duly elected and qualify. In addition to electing the Class I directors at the Meeting, the directors who were appointed in connection with the Merger must also be re-elected at the Meeting. Therefore, stockholders are being asked to elect five Class I directors to serve for a three-year term expiring at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders in 2021 and until their successors are elected and qualify; to elect two Class II directors to serve for the remainder of a three-year term expiring at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders in 2019 and until their successors are elected and qualify; and to elect two Class III directors to serve for the remainder of a three-year term expiring at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders in 2019 and until their successors are elected and qualify; and to elect two Class III directors to serve for the remainder of a three-year term expiring at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders in 2019 and until their successors are elected and qualify; and to elect two Class III directors to serve for the remainder of a three-year term expiring at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders in 2019 and until their successors are elected and qualify.

Below is a chart of the Board of Directors, including the directors who have been nominated for election as director, as indicated below (each a "nominee"). All the persons listed below currently serve as directors:

Clas	sName	Status	To Serve Until Annual Meeting in
Ι	Howard Feinglass John J. Keenan Robert D. Kunisch, Jr. Kenneth C. Lundeen Thomas P. O'Neill	Nominee Nominee Nominee Nominee	2021
Π	W. Gary Dorsch Michael B. High Paul I. Latta, Jr. Robert W. Smith, Jr. Donna Hill Staton	Nominee Nominee Continuing director Continuing director Continuing director	r
III	Richard G. Arnold James T. Dresher, Jr. Mary Ann Scully Jack E. Steil	Continuing director Nominee Continuing director Nominee	2020

Each nominee elected at the Meeting will be elected to serve for the period from his or her election until the identified annual meeting of stockholders and until his or her successor is elected and qualifies.

Each nominee has indicated a willingness to serve if elected. However, if any nominee becomes unable to serve prior to the Meeting, a substitute or substitutes will be nominated by the Board of Directors, and those proxies voted for the original nominee or nominees will be voted for such substitute(s).

Nominees receiving a plurality of the votes cast at the Meeting in the election of directors will be elected as director, in the order of the number of votes received. Directors and executive officers of the Company as a group have the

power to vote or direct the voting of 4,395,758 shares of our common stock, or approximately 23.15% of the shares of common stock outstanding on the record date, and have indicated their intention to vote "FOR" the election of all of the nominees.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" EACH OF THE NOMINEES TO THE COMPANY'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

Director Qualifications and Experience

Set forth below is certain information as of March 29, 2018 concerning the directors of the Company, including the nominees and each current director whose term will continue after the Meeting. Except as otherwise indicated, the occupation listed has been such person's principal occupation for at least the last five years.

Class I Directors to serve until the 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Howard Feinglass

Mr. Feinglass, 57, has served as a director of First Mariner Bank ("First Mariner") since June 17, 2014. Mr. Feinglass is an investment professional and the founder of Priam Capital. Before founding Priam Capital in 2003, Mr. Feinglass managed the investments of a family office with more than \$1 billion of assets under management and was also a principal in the private equity group of Odyssey Partners. Mr. Feinglass received an MBA from University of California, Los Angeles and an A.B. from Brown University. Mr. Feinglass currently serves as a member of the Compensation Committee and the Strategic Growth Initiatives Committee of the Company.

The Board of Directors believes that Mr. Feinglass' qualifications for serving on the Board of Directors include his strong background in finance, which will bring additional strength to the Board and his understanding of First Mariner as a result of being a member of its board of directors since 2014.

John J. Keenan

Mr. Keenan, 64, has served as a director of Howard and Howard Bank since 2014. Mr. Keenan is a retired KPMG LLP ("KPMG") partner. Mr. Keenan joined KPMG in 1975 and worked there until his retirement in 2011, including serving as Managing Partner of KPMG's Baltimore office from 1994 to 2005 and the Washington, DC office from 2005 to 2009 and as Partner-in-Charge of the audit practice for the Washington/Baltimore Business Unit from 2005 to 2011. Mr. Keenan is a certified public accountant and has extensive experience serving community banks, as well as companies in other industries. Given his experience as a partner at KPMG, Mr. Keenan also has knowledge in mergers and acquisitions, SEC rules and regulations, public offerings and internal control over financial reporting matters. He also serves on the boards of several not-for-profit entities, including Baltimore Center Stage, Episcopal Housing Corporation and Notre Dame of Maryland University. Mr. Keenan is currently Chair of the Audit Committee and a member of the Asset Quality Committee and the Asset-Liability Committee of the Company.

The Board of Directors believes that Mr. Keenan's qualifications for serving on the Board of Directors include his extensive experience with financial accounting matters as well as his knowledge of the banking industry and securities regulation.

Robert D. Kunisch, Jr.

Mr. Kunisch, 49, has served as President of First Mariner since June 17, 2014 and was elected to the position of Chief Executive Officer by First Mariner's stockholders in June of 2017. Mr. Kunisch has spent his entire banking career in Maryland, beginning in 1990 at Mercantile-Safe Deposit and Trust Company and, later, its acquirer, PNC Bank. After holding several management positions, he turned down the opportunity to serve as president of PNC's greater Baltimore market in 2007. Preferring to work for a smaller community bank, Mr. Kunisch joined Wilmington Trust FSB in 2008. When M&T Bancorp acquired the bank in 2011, he again pursued his desire to work at a community bank by serving as a consultant to the First Mariner board in 2012. He and Mr. Steil led the group of local Baltimore

investors who acquired First Mariner in 2014. Mr. Kunisch is currently the Chairman of Saint Ignatius Loyola Academy and a board member of various entities related to Catholic Charities. His past community involvement includes the United Way and the Independent College Fund recapitalization. Mr. Kunisch currently serves as a member of the Asset-Liability Committee, the Asset Quality Committee and the Executive Committee of the Company.

The Board of Directors believes that Mr. Kunisch's qualifications for serving on the Board of Directors include his over 25 years of financial and banking experience as well as his understanding of First Mariner as a result of being a member of its board of directors since 2014.

Kenneth C. Lundeen

Mr. Lundeen, 73, has served as a director of Howard since its formation in 2005 and has served as a director of Howard Bank since 2004. Mr. Lundeen is President, Chief Executive Officer, and a co-owner of Environmental Reclamation Company, a diversified environmental services company, and has held this position for more than five years. Mr. Lundeen previously served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of C.J. Langenfelder & Son, Inc., a diversified construction contracting firm from 1995 to 2004, and as Chairman of its successor Conrad Capital Corporation, an asset holding company, from 2004 to 2012. Mr. Lundeen served on the board of directors of the Baltimore Branch of the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond from 2001 to 2006. He is an attorney and actively practiced in Maryland, specializing in corporate and business law and representing small to medium-sized private and publicly held companies, from 1972 until 1988. Mr. Lundeen is an organizing director of Howard Bank and is currently a member of the Compensation Committee and the Executive Committee and co-Chair of the Strategic Growth Initiatives Committee of the Company.

The Board of Directors believes that Mr. Lundeen's qualifications for serving on the Board of Directors include his legal and management experience and his knowledge of the banking industry gained though his service at the Federal Reserve Bank and as a director of Howard Bank and Howard since their formation.

Thomas P. O'Neill

Mr. O'Neill, 65, has served as a director of Howard and Howard Bank since 2015. He was a director of Patapsco Bancorp, Inc. and The Patapsco Bank from 1995 (and served as its Chairman of the Board of Directors from August 1999) until August 28, 2015, when they merged into Howard and Howard Bank, respectively. He has been a partner in the accounting firm of Hertzbach and Company since 2011. Previously, he was a managing director of RSM McGladrey, Inc. and the managing partner of the regional accounting firm of Wolpoff & Company LLP, which merged with American Express Tax and Business Services in 1998. He joined Wolpoff as a staff accountant in 1974 and became a partner in 1983. Mr. O'Neill is a member of the American Institute of Public Accountants and the Maryland Association of Certified Public Accountants. He has served on the boards of many charitable and civic groups. He currently serves as a member of the Audit Committee, the Governance and Nomination Committee, the Asset-Liability Committee and the Strategic Growth Initiatives Committee of the Company.

The Board of Directors believes Mr. O'Neill's qualifications for serving on the Board of Directors include his experience in accounting, tax and real estate matters and his knowledge of Patapsco Bank's business and operations as a result of his long tenure as a Director of Patapsco Bank. In addition, Mr. O'Neill's involvement in local charitable and civic groups has allowed him to develop strong ties to the community, which provide the boards of directors of Howard and Howard Bank with valuable insight regarding the business and consumer environment in the former Patapsco Bank's local markets.

Class II Directors to serve until the 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

W. Gary Dorsch

Mr. Dorsch, 65, has served as a director of First Mariner since June 17, 2014, and has served as president of Keyser Capital, LLC, a private equity and real estate investment company and wholly owned subsidiary of Sinclair Broadcast Group, Inc. (Nasdaq: SBGI), since January, 2007. In 1999, Mr. Dorsch founded and currently co-manages Allegiance Capital LP, a licensed small business investment company (SBIC). Prior to Allegiance, he spent 24 years with Bank of

America and its predecessor banks in Maryland. Mr. Dorsch is Chairman of the Board of Managers of Triangle Sign and Service, LLC, a commercial sign company. Mr. Dorsch spent more than a decade on the board of Maryland 529 (formerly College Savings Plans of Maryland) where he was chairman of the audit and finance committee. Mr. Dorsch received his Bachelor of Science degree from Towson University and received his MBA from Loyola University Maryland. He currently serves as a member of the Audit Committee and the Asset Quality Committee and Chair of the Asset-Liability Committee of the Company.

The Board of Directors believes that Mr. Dorsch's qualifications for serving on the Board of Directors include his deep understanding of the private equity and real estate investments markets, his almost quarter-century of executive, service and board leadership experience and his understanding of First Mariner as a result of being a member of its board of directors since 2014.

Michael B. High

Mr. High, 69, has served as a director of First Mariner since June 17, 2014. With more than 40 years of banking experience, since February 2009, he has been a partner at Patriot Financial Partners LP, a private equity firm that primarily invests in banks and bank holding companies. His career experience includes senior management positions at Harleysville National Corporation, Progress Financial Corporation, CoreStates Financial Corporation and Meritor Savings Bank. Mr. High is a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (currently inactive), and holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from the Smeal College of Business Administration at The Pennsylvania State University. Mr. High currently serves as a member of the Audit Committee, the Governance and Nomination Committee and the Strategic Growth Initiatives Committee of the Company.

The Board of Directors believes that Mr. High's qualifications for serving on the Board of Directors include his over 40 years of financial, banking and private equity experience as well as his understanding of First Mariner as a result of being a member of its board of directors since 2014.

Paul I. Latta, Jr.

Mr. Latta, 74, has served as a director of Howard since its formation in 2005 and has served as a director of Howard Bank since 2004. Mr. Latta serves as Managing Member of ERIS Technologies LLC, a company developing 3-D software solutions for managing emergency situations. Prior to that Mr. Latta served as a Senior Vice President of The Rouse Company, a real estate development firm, from 1968 to 1999. Mr. Latta is an organizing director of Howard Bank. He currently serves as Chair of the Compensation Committee and as a member of the Audit Committee, the Governance and Nominating Committee and the Strategic Growth Initiatives Committee of the Company.

The Board of Directors believes that Mr. Latta's qualifications for serving on the Board of Directors include his extensive knowledge of the real estate industry and his understanding of Howard and Howard Bank as a result of being a member of the boards of directors since their inception.

Robert W. Smith, Jr.

Mr. Smith, 66, has served as a director of Howard and Howard Bank since 2012. Mr. Smith is a practicing attorney and has been a partner at the law firm of DLA Piper LLP (US) since 1983. He is currently the Co-Chair of the Global Corporate practice for DLA Piper, a position he has held for more than ten years. Mr. Smith's practice focuses on the general representation of private and public companies, and includes significant experience relating to mergers and acquisitions and the public offering of securities. Mr. Smith also has served on the boards of several not-for-profit entities, and is presently a member of the board of Baltimore Center Stage. Mr. Smith serves as the Lead Independent Director and currently serves as a member of the Compensation Committee, the Governance and Nominating Committee, the Executive Committee and the Strategic Growth Initiatives Committee of the Company.

The Boards of Directors believes that Mr. Smith's qualifications for serving on their boards include his legal background and significant experience in working with public companies and advising boards of directors on legal, governance and transactional matters, his management experience based on his responsibilities as global practice chair at DLA Piper, his significant experience with strategic transactions and his knowledge of governance principles and board matters based on his service and leadership positions with not-for-profit boards. 16

Donna Hill Staton

Ms. Hill Staton, 60, has served as a director of Howard and Howard Bank since 2009. She chairs the Governance and Nominating Committee and is a member of the Compensation Committee.

Ms. Hill Staton is an attorney and member of the Maryland Bar since 1982. She is a co-founder and principal of the strategic advice and crisis mediation consulting firm, Decision Point Strategy Group, LLC, and a founding partner of the law firm, Staton & Nolan, LLC, d/b/a Decision Point Law.

Following the completion of a federal judicial clerkship with the Hon. J. Joseph Howard, Ms. Hill Staton joined the law firm of Piper & Marbury, LLC (now DLA Piper) where she was elected partner in 1993. Her commercial litigation practice included the representation of financial institutions and other businesses in state and federal courts and commercial arbitrations. After a period of service as a Maryland circuit court judge, Ms. Hill Staton was appointed Deputy Attorney General of the State of Maryland, a position she held from 1997-2006. As chief deputy, she assisted the Attorney General with supervision of an office of nearly 600 employees, a multi-million dollar budget and responsibility for the delivery of legal advice, counsel and representation of all branches of Maryland government; enforcement of the state is antitrust, consumer protection and securities laws; criminal investigations; and representation of the State in all criminal appellate appeals. For 14 months, beginning in December 2015, Ms. Hill Staton returned to the office to serve a second time as a deputy attorney general.

Ms. Hill Staton's is a current trustee of the Client Protection Fund and has served on the Maryland State Board of Education and on the boards of the Howard County Bar Foundation, the Baltimore Education Scholarship Trust and Leadership Howard County, among others. She is a graduate and former director of Leadership Howard County, and the recipient of numerous professional and civic honors and awards, including recognition as one of Maryland's Top 100 Women by the Daily Record, Women of Achievement in Maryland History, the Daily Record Leadership in Law Award, Towson University's Distinguished Black Marylanders Award and the Alliance of Black Women Attorneys Legacy and Trailblazer awards. Ms. Hill Staton is a graduate of Princeton University and the George Washington University School of Law.

The boards of directors of Howard and Howard Bank believe that Ms. Hill Staton's qualifications to serve as a director of Howard and Howard Bank include her legal background working with and representing businesses, regulators and legislative bodies, her management experience, civic leadership and her knowledge of governance principals gained from service on government and not-for-profit boards and commissions.

Class III Directors to serve until the 2020 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Richard G. Arnold

Mr. Arnold, 56, has served as a director of Howard since its formation in 2005 and has served as a director of Howard Bank since its inception in 2004. Mr. Arnold is the Vice President and co-owner of The John E. Ruth Company, Inc., a plumbing and heating firm, having served in that capacity since 1983, and is the Managing Member of Madison Mechanical Contracting LLC. He is also the Managing Member and maintains ownership in various real estate holdings. Mr. Arnold serves on the Board of Trustees at Mount de Sales High School and serves on several related committees. Mr. Arnold is an organizing director of Howard Bank and is currently a member of the Asset-Liability Committee and co-Chair of the Asset Quality Committee of the Company.

The Boards of Directors believes that Mr. Arnold's qualifications for serving on the boards of directors of Howard and Howard Bank include his many years of active involvement with the boards of directors, his experience owning and operating small businesses in our market area, his experience in real estate and real estate development, and being a life-long member of the community, which provides long standing affiliations with local businesses.

James T. Dresher, Jr.

Mr. Dresher, 68, has served as a director of First Mariner since June 17, 2014 and currently serves as CEO of Skye Asset Management, LLC, a private equity company he founded in 1995. Skye invests in asset categories such as biotechnology, cybersecurity, banking and social media. Mr. Dresher is active in the Baltimore community, serving on the boards of Johns Hopkins Hospital and Johns Hopkins Medicine. He is currently the Chairman of the Board of Trustees of Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center, a 130-acre Baltimore campus involved in patient care, research, and teaching associated with Johns Hopkins School of Medicine. Mr. Dresher formerly served on the board of the Greater Baltimore Committee and was a founding member of Baltimore's Ronald McDonald House. He currently serves as a member of the Compensation Committee and the Executive Committee of the Company. 17

The Board of Directors believes that Mr. Dresher's qualifications for serving on the Board include his experience in operating businesses throughout Maryland, his knowledge of the role a bank plays in serving small to middle-market companies in the region and his understanding of First Mariner as a result of being a member of its board of directors since 2014.

Mary Ann Scully

Ms. Scully, 66, has served as a director and, until the Merger, as the Board Chairperson, President, and Chief Executive Officer of Howard since December 2005. She was an organizing director of and has served as a director and, until the Merger, as the Board Chairperson, President, and Chief Executive Officer of Howard Bank since the founding of the Bank in 2004. She currently serves as Board Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer of Howard and Howard Bank. Ms. Scully was employed by Allfirst Bank (formerly known as The First National Bank of Maryland and now known as M&T Bank) from 1973 through April 2003. She served as Executive Vice President for Regional Banking from June 2001 through April 2003, Executive Vice President for Community Banking from January 2000 through June 2001, Senior Vice President for Strategic Planning from 1998 to 2000, Senior Vice President for Mergers and Acquisitions from 1996 to 1998, and Senior Vice President of International Banking from 1984 to 1996.

Ms. Scully is Past Chair of the Maryland Bankers Association and Past Chair of the Community Foundation of Howard County. She is presently a trustee and President of the board of Associated Catholic Charities, a trustee and corporate campaign co-chair of Kennedy Krieger Institute, a board member of the Greater Baltimore Committee and a trustee of Mount St Joseph College/High School. She is also a trustee for the Community Foundation of Howard County Real Estate board and a member of the University of Maryland Baltimore County Board of Visitors. She also serves as a board member of the Baltimore Branch of the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond and a Community Advisory board member for the FDIC. Ms. Scully has served as a member of the Maryland Economic Development and Business Climate Commission and is an active member of St. Louis Parish in Clarksville, Maryland. She is a 2007 graduate of Leadership Maryland.

In 2007, Ms. Scully was recognized as an honoree in the Howard County Women's Hall of Fame and was named Entrepreneur of the Year by the Howard County Chamber of Commerce. She received the Howard County "Good Scout" award from the Baltimore Area Council of the Boy Scouts of America in 2011. In 2002, 2005 and 2007, she was recognized as one of Maryland's Top 100 Women by The Daily Record, was a 2008, 2012 and 2016 Daily Record Influential Marylander, a 2012, 2015 and 2016 Most Admired CEO and was a winner of a 2012 Trailblazer Award presented by the Baltimore Center Club. She is a Loyola University Alumni laureate and a Seton Hill University Distinguished Alumna. She was named one of the Top 25 Women to Watch in Banking by the American Banker in 2016.

Ms. Scully currently serves as Chair of the Executive Committee of the boards of directors of both Howard and Howard Bank, as Co-Chair of the Strategic Growth Initiatives Committee of Howard, and as a member of the Asset Quality Committee of Howard Bank.

The Board of Directors believes that Ms. Scully's qualifications for serving on and as Chair of their boards include her extensive knowledge of the Bank's history, business and operations, as well as of the banking industry in general and the risks facing the industry. Ms. Scully has gained valuable insight into the Bank and the industry as a result of her long tenure with the Bank both as a director and in her executive officer positions as well as her previous extensive experience at other banks and her being active in several banking associations, including as a past Chair of the Maryland Bankers Association. The Board of Directors also believes that her personal and business affiliations in our market areas also qualify her to sit on the Board of Directors, and that it is beneficial to have an executive officer, who is familiar with the day-to-day operations of Howard and Howard Bank, serving on the Board of Directors, which provides the Board of Directors with a management perspective that helps them successfully oversee Howard and Howard Bank. 18

Jack E. Steil

Mr. Steil, 70, has served as Chairman of the Board of First Mariner since June 17, 2014 and served as First Mariner's Chief Executive Officer from June 17, 2014 until July 2017. Mr. Steil is an experienced community bank executive who has spent his career in First Mariner's local markets. Mr. Steil started his career in Mercantile-Safe Deposit and Trust Company's auditing department in 1970 and he held successively more senior management positions at this Baltimore-based bank until his retirement in 2002, including serving on its board of directors and as Chairman of Credit Policy. Mr. Steil returned to banking in 2005 at Susquehanna Bank, then moved to Wilmington Trust FSB in 2007. After serving as a consultant to the First Mariner board of directors beginning in 2011, he and Mr. Kunisch led the group of investors who acquired First Mariner in 2014. Mr. Steil currently serves as a member of the Strategic Growth Initiatives Committee and co-Chair of the Asset Quality Committee of the Company.

The Board of Directors believes that Mr. Steil's qualifications for serving on the Board of Directors include his over 40 years of financial and banking experience as well as his understanding of First Mariner as a result of being a member of its board of directors since 2014.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The following table discloses all fees earned and other payments to each person who served as a director during 2017.

Difference could be			
Name	Fees Earned or Paid in Cash (\$)	Stock Awards (\$)(1)(2)	Total (\$)
Richard G. Arnold	\$24,500	\$14,720	\$39,220
Nasser Basir (3)	17,250	14,720	31,970
Gary R. Bozel (3)	16,500	14,720	31,220
Andrew E. Clark	10,500	6,860	17,360
Robert J. Hartson (3)	18,000	14,720	32,720
John J. Keenan	23,250	14,720	37,970
Paul I. Latta, Jr.	34,500	14,720	49,220
Kenneth C. Lundeen	23,750	14,720	38,470
Karen D. McGraw (3)	18,000	14,720	32,720
Richard J. Morgan (3)	18,000	14,720	32,720
Thomas P. O'Neill	18,750	14,720	33,470
Mary Ann Scully (4)	-	-	-
Robert W. Smith, Jr.	23,750	14,720	38,470
Donna Hill Staton	22,250	14,720	36,970
Total	\$269,000	\$183,500	\$452,500

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The amount shown represents the aggregate grant date fair value, determined in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, Compensation-Stock Compensation,

(1) of the stock awards granted to each of our outside directors in 2017. The grant date fair value was determined by multiplying the total number of shares of common stock awarded by the closing price of our common stock on Nasdaq on the respective grant date.

As of December 31, 2017, our independent directors held outstanding options to purchase shares of our common (2)stock as follows: Mr. Arnold – 5,675 shares; Mr. Basir – 304 shares; Mr. Latta – 10,357 shares; Mr. Lundeen - 3,405 shares.

(3) On March 1, 2018, in connection with the closing of the Merger, Messrs. Basir, Bozel, Hartson, McGraw and Morgan resigned from the Board of Directors.

(4)Ms. Scully is an executive officer and is not compensated for her services as a director.

Director Fees.

Beginning January 1, 2017, non-employee directors of the Company are compensated for their services as directors as follows: Each receives an annual cash retainer of \$15,000 for their service on the Board and an annual cash retainer of \$1,500 for service on each committee of which the director is a member (excluding the committee chair). In addition, each non-employee director receives 800 shares of Company common stock per year. One half of the cash retainer and one half of the stock are paid in January, with the second half of each paid in July of each year. No separate fees are paid for attendance at Board or committee meetings. In addition, each non-employee director who holds any of the following Board leadership positions receives an additional cash retainer in the amount per annum indicated:

· Lead Independent Director - \$12,000

• Audit Committee Chair - \$6,000

· All Other Committee Chairs - \$5,000

In 2017, non-employee directors earned cash payments of \$269,000, and awards of 10,000 shares of common stock as compensation for their service as directors, including attending board and committee meetings, as disclosed in the above table. The directors receive no other compensation for their services.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Set forth below is certain information regarding persons who are executive officers of the Company and who are not directors of the Company. Except as otherwise indicated, the occupation listed has been such person's principal occupation for at least the last five years.

Robert A. Altieri

Mr. Altieri, 56, serves as Executive Vice President of the Company and Executive Vice President, President of the Mortgage Division and Chief Specialty Lending Officer of Howard Bank. He has held these positions since April 2013.

Prior to joining Howard Bank, Mr. Altieri was most recently the Chief Executive Officer and President of Carrollton Bancorp, Carrollton Bank, Carrollton Mortgage Services, Inc. and Carrollton Community Development Corporation, serving in those capacities for nearly 12 years. Prior to that, he served as a Senior Vice President and Chief Lending Officer for Carrollton Bank.

Mr. Altieri has over 30 years of experience in the commercial banking industry.

George C. Coffman

Mr. Coffman, 54, serves as Treasurer, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and Treasurer, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Investment Officer of the Bank. He has held these positions since the opening of the Bank in 2004 and since December 2005 with respect to Howard. Mr. Coffman also serves as Chief Interest Rate and Liquidity Risk Officer of Howard Bank. Mr. Coffman provides leadership for the financial management and investment operations of Howard Bank. In this role, he directly manages all of the corporate accounting functions, management and regulatory reporting preparation, and compliance with accounting principles and disclosure requirements. Mr. Coffman also is responsible for the management of interest rate risk, budgeting and financial planning, and tax planning and reporting. Other duties include directing the investment portfolio, as well as overall funds management, and investor relations. Mr. Coffman is a Certified Public Accountant. He also serves as the Bank's Chief Investment Officer.

Prior to joining the organizing group of Howard Bank, Mr. Coffman held several senior financial management positions at Maryland-based financial institutions, including Mercantile Bank in Baltimore (now PNC Bank), Farmers & Mechanics Bank in Frederick (now PNC Bank), Sequoia Bank in Bethesda (now United Bank), and Citizens Bank of Maryland in Laurel (now SunTrust Bank).

Mr. Coffman has more than 30 years of experience in the operations, accounting, investment and finance areas of commercial banks in the central Maryland area.

Thomas (Randy) Jones

Mr. Jones, 52, serves as Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer of Howard Bank. He has held these positions since March 1, 2018. Prior to the Merger, Mr. Jones served as Chief Credit Officer for First Mariner since 2014.

Prior to joining Howard Bank, Mr. Jones was a Credit Analyst for Mercantile-Safe Deposit and Trust Company. During the course of his career he has held positions in Credit, Commercial Lending and Loan Review. After the

acquisition of Mercantile Bankshares by PNC in 2006, he served as the Maryland Market Credit Executive of PNC for seven years before joining First Mariner Bank in 2014 as Chief Credit Officer.

Mr. Jones has over 26 years of commercial banking experience in Maryland. 21

Steven M. Poynot

Mr. Poynot, 39, serves as Executive Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer of Howard Bank. He has held these positions since March 1, 2018. Prior to the Merger, Mr. Poynot served as the Chief Credit Officer for Howard Bank and spent a period of time building out the commercial banking infrastructure for Howard Bank with the creation of the Credit department as well as the Client Services Support Team. Prior to moving into a Senior Management role at Howard Bank, Mr. Poynot was a Relationship Manager focused on growing the commercial customer portfolio with a mix of commercial businesses as well as commercial real estate clients. Prior to joining Howard Bank, Mr. Poynot was a member of the Commercial Real Estate Lending group for Mercantile-Safe Deposit & Trust Company (Now PNC Bank), located in Baltimore, MD.

Since joining Howard Bank in 2005, and moving into the Howard County community in 2006, Mr. Poynot has been involved in a number of community organizations. He currently serves on the Board of the House of Ruth. He served for ten years on the Board of The Howard County Arts Council (President & Treasurer), a Board member of The Bright Minds Foundation (the educational foundation for the Howard County Public Schools), he is a past member of various committees for Leadership Howard County, as well as a member of the Howard County Spending Affordability Committee from 2012 to 2018. A 2011 graduate of Leadership Howard County, he has been recognized as a Next Leader in Banking from the MBA, Howard County's Finest 39 under 39 from the Cystic Fibrosis Foundation, and the Baltimore Business Journals 40 under 40.

Mr. Poynot has over 20 years of banking experience in Maryland.

Charles E. Schwabe

Mr. Schwabe, 62, serves as Executive Vice President and Secretary of the Company, and Executive Vice President, Chief Strategic Risk Officer and Secretary of Howard Bank. Mr. Schwabe has served as Executive Vice President and Secretary of the Company since December 2005 and as Executive Vice President and Secretary of Howard Bank since the founding of Howard Bank in 2004 and was appointed Chief Strategic Risk Officer in December 2014. He previously served as Chief Administrative Officer, Chief Information Officer, Information Security Officer, Compliance Officer and Chief Operational Risk Officer of the Bank from the founding of the Bank in 2004 until December 2014. Mr. Schwabe provides leadership for the assessment and management of enterprise risk which encompasses asset quality, compliance and operational risk, cyber and physical security risk.

Prior to joining the organizing group for Howard Bank, he was employed by Allfirst Bank (now M&T Bank) from 1988 through April 2003. He served as Senior Vice President and Manager for the Customer Relationship Management Program as well as the Strategy and Planning Director for the Technology, eCommerce and Operations Division. At Allfirst Bank, he was also Vice President of Strategic Planning for the Mergers and Acquisitions Division and Vice President and Group Marketing Head for small business and retail product development and management. Prior to working at Allfirst Bank, he was a consultant and senior manager for a marketing firm that specialized in the health care and financial services industries.

Mr. Schwabe is a Trustee of Baltimore Center Stage, the nationally recognized State Theater of Maryland located in Baltimore, serving on the finance and marketing committees, and he is currently the Chair of Center Stage's Corporate Partnerships Committee. He serves on the Board of Directors of MBA Solutions, a subsidiary of the Maryland Bankers Association, and was Chairman of the Board from 2013 to 2015. Mr. Schwabe also serves on the Community Reinvestment Act (CRA) Advisory Board for CRA Partners (a division of Senior Housing Crime Prevention Foundation) based in Memphis, Tennessee, the Columbia Festival of the Arts Investment Committee and the Safe Systems Advisory Board. He has served as President and Chairman of the Columbia Festival of the Arts Board of Trustees, President of the Baltimore Chapter of the American Marketing Association, and Chair of Catholic Charities of Baltimore's Our Daily Bread Employment Center Gala Committee. Mr. Schwabe has over 30 years of banking management experience and another seven years as a marketing strategy consultant to the banking, retail and business services industries.

James D. Witty

Mr. Witty, 51, serves as Executive Vice President and Chief Commercial Banking Officer of Howard Bank. He joined the Bank in this capacity in May 2016. He is responsible for all commercial business development and relationship management in the Howard Bank footprint. Most recently, Mr. Witty served as the Maryland Regional President for BB&T. While at BB&T, he was responsible for managing the commercial and retail operations for the Maryland Region including small business lending, commercial real estate, commercial and industrial lending and 98 retail locations. Prior to its acquisition by BB&T, Mr. Witty served as the Regional President for the greater Baltimore region of Susquehanna Bank from 2012 to 2015. His previous experience includes Commercial Banking Unit Manager for PNC in Baltimore and various roles for Mercantile Bank including manager of the Asset Based Lending Department, Commercial and Industrial Unit Banking manager, Commercial Relationship Manager and Credit Analyst.

Mr. Witty currently service as the Vice Chairman of the board at The Maryland Zoo and Treasurer of the board at the Maryland Food Bank.

A seasoned executive, Mr. Witty has over 29 years of banking experience.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Guiding Philosophy

Howard's executive compensation philosophy embraces the following core principles and objectives:

- Attract and retain top talent who demonstrate success and professional growth and who model the Company's values of excellence, leadership, discipline, teamwork and community spirit.
- Reward desired performance and behavior in order to drive and enhance Company performance and related
- achievement of its short-term and long-term goals consistent with the strategic plan approved by the Board of Directors.
- Maintain compensation competitiveness within the marketplace from which the Company accesses the desired level of talent.
- Include a strategic emphasis on performance-based compensation, utilizing a mix of short-term and long-term
- incentive compensation that rewards specific performance, achievements and outcomes and aligns individual rewards with Company performance and enhancement of stockholder value.
- · Increase commitment through periodic grants of equity-based compensation awards.
- Structure compensation plans so as not to encourage employees to take unnecessary or excessive risks that threaten \cdot the value of the Company and so as not to encourage the manipulation of earnings to enhance the compensation of
- any employee.

The Company's compensation policies and practices reflect its guiding philosophy, as shown below.

What we do:	What we don't do:
Significant portion of executive pay based on performance against	No automatic or guaranteed annual salary
goals set by the Board of Directors	increases
Independent compensation consultant regularly advises the Compensation Committee	No guaranteed bonuses or guaranteed long-term incentive awards No excessive perquisites
Minimum vesting periods of not less than three years for annual equity awards	
Use of peer company data to help set executive compensation	

Annual advisory votes on executive

compensation

Key Elements of Compensation. The following table summarizes key elements of Howard's executive compensation program and the primary objectives each element supports.

Key Elements of Compensation	Objectives
Base salary	Attract and retain highly qualified executives Reward prior performance, industry and job specific knowledge, experience and leadership ability
Annual cash bonuses	Reward achievement of annual corporate and individual goals
Stock-based incentive compensation	Reward achievement of long-term objectives and create direct link between performance and stockholder value

Changes in base salary and the amount of incentive-based cash compensation earned is based both on the individual executive officer's performance and on the performance of the entire Company against goals identified and approved at the beginning of each year. The Company also considers the total compensation and the mix of compensation paid by financial services companies with characteristics similar to those of the Company to officers with comparable responsibilities and experience.

Alignment Between Pay and Performance. Howard is committed to aligning the compensation of its executive officers with the Company's financial and operational performance.

The Compensation Committee uses both annual incentive cash bonuses and equity awards to link executive pay with Howard's performance. Payments under the annual cash bonus plan are based on a combination of the Company's achievement of key corporate financial performance goals and achievement of individual performance goals of Ms. Scully, our Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Coffman, our Executive Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer and our next three most highest paid executive officers (the "NEOs"). In 2017, Howard's performance resulted in average payouts for the NEOs (other than Mr. Altieri who has a separate contractual incentive opportunity) under the annual cash bonus plan of 87% of target, out of a maximum potential payout of 150% of target. In 2016, the Company did not achieve the target levels of performance under the company-wide goals, and no bonus was paid for 2016.

The Compensation Committee also uses equity awards to help align the interests of management and Howard's stockholders. The equity awards granted in 2017 vest over a three-year period. These awards represented approximately 11.2% (for the CEO) and 7.9% (average for the other NEOs) of each NEO's total annual compensation for 2017. In past years, the Compensation Committee also granted equity awards with performance-based vesting conditions tied to the achievement of company-wide goals, such as total revenue, earnings per share ("EPS") and net income. Howard's performance in 2017 satisfied the performance goals applicable to one-third of the shares under the performance-based equity awards granted in 2015, and such shares will vest in April 2018.

2017 Say on Pay Vote. In 2017, the advisory stockholder vote on Howard's executive compensation received approval of over 98.7% of the votes cast on the proposal. During 2017 and 2018, the Compensation Committee has generally continued to apply the same compensation philosophy and practices that were described in the 2017 proxy statement in determining amounts and types of executive compensation.

Board and Compensation Committee Process. The Compensation Committee's responsibilities with regard to compensation are to: develop and implement an annual process for evaluating the performance of the Chief Executive Officer; make recommendations to the Board concerning the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer; in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer, determine the compensation of the other executive officers; make recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning compensation to directors; advise the Board and the Chief Executive Officer on other compensation and benefit matters; and administer various Company incentive plans and employment agreements.

The Chairman of the Compensation Committee establishes the agenda for Compensation Committee meetings. The CEO and Chief Human Resource Officer also interface with the Compensation Committee in connection with the Compensation Committee's executive compensation decision-making, which includes making recommendations concerning compensation programs and decisions. The Compensation Committee periodically meets with the CEO and the Chief Human Resource Officer to assess progress toward meeting objectives set by the Board for both annual and long-term compensation. The Compensation Committee also meets in executive session without management present when appropriate.

In considering appropriate levels of compensation for executives, the Compensation Committee takes into account the Company's performance and individual performance, as well as comparative data from Howard's peer companies. The Compensation Committee reviews all of the components of compensation in making determinations on the mix,

amount and form of executive compensation. While the Compensation Committee does not use any quantitative formula or multiple for comparing or establishing compensation for executive management, it is mindful of internal pay equity considerations and assesses the relationship of the compensation of each executive to other members of executive management.

Role of the Compensation Consultant. For 2017, ChaseCompGroup's services for the Compensation Committee included: 25

- \cdot conducting an executive compensation review of Howard's executive management team,
- \cdot providing recommendations regarding certain changes to executive compensation, and
- \cdot providing recommendations regarding the composition of Howard's peer group for 2017.

Benchmarking. When determining the amount and form of compensation for executives for 2017, the Compensation Committee considered comparative executive compensation information provided by ChaseCompGroup that was derived from peer group data. The Compensation Committee used the peer group data to assist with assessing Howard's compensation competitiveness and to help evaluate its pay-for-performance alignment. Recognizing that comparative pay assessments have inherent limitations, due to the lack of precise comparability of executive positions between companies, as well as the companies themselves, the comparative data are used only as a guide and the Compensation Committee does not fix any NEO's compensation (or individual compensation elements) to a particular compensation level within this comparative data. In exercising its judgment to set pay levels, the Compensation Committee looks beyond the comparative data and also considers individual job responsibilities, individual performance, experience, compensation history, and company performance against its goals.

The peer group is updated annually by the Compensation Committee, based on a process that includes recommendations from internal sources, including the Chief Human Resource Officer, and external sources such as the Compensation Committee's independent compensation consultant, to reflect the companies against which Howard competes for executive talent or for stockholder investment. The specific characteristics of the financial institutions comprising the peer group vary from year to year, but the companies are chosen based on a combination of factors that include asset size and location in the Mid-Atlantic region. All 24 of the companies in Howard's peer group are publicly-traded banking companies. The peer group used for 2017 compensation purposes was the same peer group used in 2016 for purposes of the Board's compensation review.

As of December 31, 2016, the 24 peer companies all had assets within a range of approximately 66% to 174% of Howard's asset size, which the Compensation Committee considers an appropriate range for comparison purposes. The specific asset sizes for the peer companies listed in the report presented to the Compensation Committee in March, 2017 ranged from approximately \$760 million to \$2 billion and had median assets of \$1.2 billion as of December 31, 2016.

For 2017, Howard's peer group consisted of the following companies:

Company Name	Ticker	Company Name	Ticker Company Name	Ticker
WashingtonFirst Bankshares, Inc.	WFBI	Access National Corporation	ANCX 1st Constitution Bancorp	FCCY
BCB Bancorp, Inc.	BCBP	Community Financial Corporation	TCFC Parke Bancorp, Inc.	PKBK
Old Line Bancshares, Inc.	OLBK	Community Bankers Trust Corporation	ESXB First Bank	FRBA
Republic First Bancorp, Inc	. FRBK	Shore Bancshares, Inc.	SHBI Two River Bancorp	TRCB
C&F Financial Corporation	CFFI	Unity Bancorp, Inc.	UNTY Old Point Financial Corporation	OPOF
Middleburg Financial Corporation	MBRC	Southern National Bancorp of Virginia, Inc.	SONA Royal Bancshares of Pennsylvania, Inc.	RBPAA

Paragon Commercial Corporation	PBNC Bank of Princeton	BPRN Bancorp of New Jersey, Inc.	BKJ
First United Corporation	FUNC QNB Corp.	QNBC Severn Bancorp, Inc.	SVBI

Compensation Mix. The Compensation Committee does not target a specific allocation among the various compensation components. In allocating compensation among salary, bonus and equity-based compensation, the Compensation Committee believes that the compensation of the senior-most levels of management with the greatest ability to influence Howard's performance should be significantly performance-based, while lower levels of management should receive a greater portion of their compensation in base salary. The Compensation Committee also makes allocations between short-term and long-term compensation for NEOs.

The approximate percentages of salary, bonus and equity-based (using grant date fair value) compensation compared to the total of such compensation (referred to as total annual compensation) for 2017 for the NEOs were as follows: 26

	Base	Incentive	Equity
	Salary	Cash	Award
Name	%	Bonus %	%
Mary Ann Scully	66.5%	22.2%	11.2%
George C. Coffman	71.8	16.0	12.4
James D. Witty	71.6	19.9	8.4
Charles Schwabe	79.4	13.8	6.7
Robert Altieri	38.3	57.6	4.0

Base Salary. The Compensation Committee believes that base salaries for the Company's executive officers should be targeted at market competitive levels using data from our peer group. In establishing the CEO's base salary, the Compensation Committee typically considers the recommendations of its independent compensation consultant based on an analysis of peer group data and the CEO's individual performance and contributions relative to Howard's corporate goals. In establishing base salaries of Howard's other NEOs, the Compensation Committee typically considers the recommendations of individual responsibility level, individual and company performance, total compensation histories for each NEO, peer group data and a general understanding of executive compensation in the financial services industry. The Compensation Committee considers each of these factors but does not assign a specific value to any of them.

After consultation with the Compensation Committee's independent compensation consultant, and consideration of compensation paid by companies in Howard's peer group, taking into account the organic and acquired growth in the loans, assets, deposits and revenues of the Company, the achievement of significant growth of the mortgage division and other progress on strategic initiatives through the end of 2016, each of our named executive officers other than Mr. Altieri received an increase in base salary in March 2017. We note that Ms. Scully's relative increase was larger than the increases of Mr. Coffman, Mr. Witty and Mr. Schwabe because the Compensation Committee determined that she was significantly below the peer group median. The base salaries in effect as of December 31, 2016 and 2017 were as shown below:

	2016	2017	
	Base	Base	%
	Salaries	Salaries	Change
Name	(\$)	(\$)	(%)
Mary Ann Scully	350,000	430,000	22.8
George C. Coffman	275,000	290,000	5.5
James D. Witty	275,000	285,000	3.6
Charles Schwabe	250,000	260,000	4.0
Robert Altieri	245,000	245,000	0.0

Annual Incentive Cash Bonuses. The Compensation Committee typically awards annual cash bonuses using a structure based upon the achievement of specified Company-wide financial results as well as individual NEO goals.

At the beginning of each year, the Compensation Committee establishes cash bonus opportunities for each NEO other than Mr. Altieri, who has a separate contractual incentive opportunity under his employment agreement, as described below under "Annual Profit Sharing Opportunity for Mr. Altieri." The target payout levels for the NEOs are set as a percentage of base salary. For 2017, payments under the annual cash bonus plan were based on a combination of the Company's achievement of key corporate financial performance goals (weighted at 60%) and achievement of individual NEO performance goals (weighted at 40%). The specific performance goals are keyed to important financial and business objectives which are intended to enhance stockholder value. The Compensation Committee sets target levels of performance for these goals, which are intended to be achievable, but challenging. A minimum,

or threshold, achievement (ranging from 50% to 71% of the target level of performance) on the company-wide goals is required to earn the minimum annual cash bonus, and performance that exceeds the target results in higher bonus awards.

In setting annual cash bonus opportunities, the Compensation Committee reviews relevant peer company data to ensure that proposed target payout levels provide an appropriate opportunity to earn bonuses that are competitive with the Company's peer group. After it has approved the annual incentive bonus plan and payout opportunities for the NEOs, the Compensation Committee recommends the bonus plan to the Board for approval. The Compensation Committee retains the discretion to make adjustments to any evaluation of performance under the performance metrics to eliminate the effect of extraordinary, non-recurring or unusual items, transactions or events.

For 2017, the Compensation Committee selected four Company-wide financial performance measures. The Company-wide financial metrics were net income growth (weighted at 35% of the total), return on average assets ("ROAA") (weighted at 30%), ratio of non-performing assets ("NPA") (weighted at 10%), and growth of loan portfolio (weighted at 25%). Individual performance goals were selected based on each NEO's functional role and responsibilities, and included a variety of financial, operational and transactional performance metrics. Sixty percent of the bonus allocation was tied to the four Company-wide financial targets, and the remaining 40% of the bonus allocation was tied to the individual performance goals.

The following table shows the threshold, target and maximum bonus payout levels established for each NEO (other than Mr. Altieri) under the 2017 annual incentive cash bonus plan, expressed as a percentage of base salary.

	Threshold Bonus	Target Bonus	Maximum Bonus
	Payout	Payout	Payout
	Level	Level	Level
	(as	(as	(as
	percentage	percentage	percentage
Name	of salary)	of salary)	of salary)
Mary Ann Scully	20%	40%	60%
George C. Coffman	12.5%	25%	37.5%
James D. Witty	12.5%	25%	37.5%
Charles Schwabe	10%	20%	30%

For 2017, the Compensation Committee recommended and the Board approved the following threshold and maximum performance levels for the four Company-wide performance measures:

Performance Goal	Threshold Performance Level (as percentage of target level of performance) 50%	Maximum Performance Level (as percentage of target level of performance) 130%
	1 /	•
Net income growth Growth in ROAA	50% 50%	130% 130%
Ratio of NPA	71%	130%
Loan portfolio growth	71%	130%

In early 2018, the Compensation Committee reviewed the Company's performance compared to the four Company-wide performance goals established for 2017. The Company's performance in 2017 was above the threshold level for all four metrics, but below the target level for three metrics. The Company exceeded the target level for one metric, loan portfolio growth. 28

The following table shows the four Company-wide performance goals established for 2017 and the extent to which such goals were achieved:

					Percentage	e
			2017		of Target	
	2017		Actual		Level	
Performance Goals	Target		Results		Achieved	
Net income growth	\$2,468,000)	\$1,616,000)	65	%
Growth in ROAA	0.17	%	0.10	%	58	%
Ratio of NPA	1.16	%	1.28	%	91	%
Loan portfolio growth	109,000		115,084		106	%

Also in early 2018, the Compensation Committee reviewed each NEO's (other than Mr. Altieri's) performance during 2017 against the NEO's individual performance goals for the year. Based on this review, the Compensation Committee determined that each NEO substantially met or exceeded his or her individual performance goals. Based on the level of performance against the four Company-wide measures, as shown in the table above, and taking into account the performance of the individual NEOs against their individual performance goals, the Compensation Committee determined bonus payments for each NEO (other than Mr. Altieri) by applying the relevant weighting to the achievement of the applicable performance goals for each NEO. The 2017 incentive bonus payouts are shown in the table below:

		2017			
		Annual			
		Cash			
		Bonus Paid			
	2017	as		2017	
	Annual	Percentage		Performance	
	Cash	of		Achieved as	
	Bonus	Base		Percentage	
	Paid	Salary		of Target	
Name	(\$)	(%)		(%)	
Mary Ann Scully	\$137,944	32	%	80	%
George C. Coffman	\$62,495	22	%	86	%
James D. Witty	\$75,668	27	%	106	%
Charles Schwabe	\$44,824	17	%	86	%

These 2017 annual cash bonus amounts are presented as Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation for 2017 in the "Summary Compensation Table for 2017."

Annual Profit Sharing Opportunity for Mr. Altieri. Under his employment agreement, Mr. Altieri is entitled to an annual profit sharing opportunity (the "Profit Sharing Award") equal to a percentage of the annual pretax income from the Bank's retail mortgage operation (before any deduction for corporate overhead allocations). The annual Profit Sharing Award is paid out as follows: 50% is paid by January 31 of the year following the year earned, and 16.66% is paid out on January 31 of each of the next three years. For 2017, Mr. Altieri's Profit Sharing Award was \$369,192, and is presented as Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation for 2017 in the "Summary Compensation Table for 2017."

Equity-Based Compensation. The Compensation Committee believes stock-based incentive compensation is an important tool to further align the interests of our executive officers with the long-term interests of our stockholders and uses the Company's long term incentive plan for that purpose. Equity-based awards generally constitute the largest non-cash component of each NEO's total compensation package. In setting the amount of annual equity-based

awards, the Compensation Committee takes into account levels of long-term equity-based compensation, and pay mix data, at its peer companies, based on input from its independent compensation consultant. In establishing award levels, the Compensation Committee generally does not consider the equity ownership levels of the recipients or prior awards that are fully vested.

In 2017, the equity awards granted to NEOs were in the form of restricted stock units ("RSUs") subject to time vesting over a three-year period. One-third of the shares vest on each anniversary of the grant date, provided the executive remains employed through such date (subject to certain exceptions). Dividends on shares underlying time-based RSUs are accumulated and will vest and be paid only when and to the extent the shares to which they relate vest. In the future, the Compensation Committee intends to use both time-based and performance-based equity awards. 29

No stock awards were granted in 2016. In 2015 and prior years, the Compensation Committee granted both time-based RSUs and RSUs subject to both time-based vesting and performance-based vesting conditions. The performance-based vesting conditions in the RSUs granted in 2015 and prior years require the achievement of annual Company-wide financial goals for each year in a three-year vesting period, and correspond to amounts approved by the Board as part of the Company's annual operating budget for the year. The specific Company-wide goals include total revenue, EPS, net income and return on assets. Vesting of an annual tranche of shares under these awards occurs only if at least 90% of the target (budgeted) amount for all but one of the performance-based vesting and time vesting are accumulated and will vest and be paid only when and to the extent the shares to which they relate vest. Any portion of a performance-based RSU that is earned as a result of performance during a given year is settled in unrestricted shares issued after the year ends and once the time-vesting period is satisfied.

The Compensation Committee determined that Howard's performance in 2017 satisfied the performance criteria and therefore resulted in the vesting of one-third of the shares underlying the RSUs granted in 2015. These shares will vest on April 30, 2018, provided the executive remains employed through such date (subject to certain exceptions). Howard's performance in 2015 and 2016 did not satisfy the performance criteria under the performance-based RSUs granted in 2013, 2014 or 2015, and, as a result, the portion of such RSUs eligible for vesting in 2015 and 2016 did not vest.

The award agreements for RSUs granted by Howard provide for accelerated vesting upon a change in control and upon termination of employment in certain circumstances.

Retirement Benefits. Howard maintains a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the "SERP"). Eligibility to participate in the SERP is limited to highly compensated employees as determined by the Board. Currently, eligibility to participate in the SERP has been granted solely to Ms. Scully, our Chief Executive Officer. The SERP is unfunded and designed to be a nonqualified deferred compensation retirement plan in compliance with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. In early 2016, the Compensation Committee and the Board concluded that the annual benefit payable to Ms. Scully under the SERP should be increased in order to be more closely aligned with market practices relating to SERP benefits as a percentage of compensation. The increase in the benefit was adopted through a supplement to the original benefit provided to Ms. Scully under the SERP.

The SERP is a defined benefit style program in which the participant is promised a benefit according to a set formula; such benefit is paid to the participant (or his or her beneficiary) in equal quarterly installments over a period of 15 years following the later of (i) the participant's severance from employment with the Bank after attainment of the Normal Retirement Age (as defined in the SERP) or (ii) the attainment of Normal Retirement Age if severance has occurred first. Under the SERP, as supplemented and increased in 2016, Ms. Scully will receive \$150,000 each year for 15 years once she begins to receive her benefit subject to the applicable vesting schedule. Provided she remains an employee of the Bank through the applicable vesting time, Ms. Scully will earn vesting on a graduated schedule in which she will become fully vested on August 25, 2019.

To the extent not already fully vested, a participant in the SERP fully vests in his or her benefit upon the occurrence of the participant's death or Disability (as defined in the SERP) or if the Bank terminates the SERP following a Change in Control (as defined in the SERP). Upon a participant's Termination for Cause (as defined in the SERP), he or she forfeits all benefits under the SERP including any amounts in which he or she has previously vested.

See the "Pension Benefits for 2017" table for more information regarding this plan.

Perquisites. Perquisites provided to each NEO are reviewed annually within the context of Howard's executive compensation program, market practices and the nature of each NEO's responsibilities. Generally, Howard limits the types of perquisites offered to NEOs as shown in the "All Other Compensation for 2017" table.

The Compensation Committee believes the currently-offered perquisites are minimal in overall cost and competitively necessary to attract and retain talented executives. Consistent with most other financial institutions in its peer group, Howard provides NEOs with a car allowance and pays the premiums for life insurance policies for its NEOs. 30

Severance and Change in Control Benefits. NEOs would be entitled to receive their vested benefits under the 401(k) plan and SERP upon a termination of employment (except that all benefits under the SERP, whether vested or unvested, would be forfeited if the participant's employment is terminated for cause prior to attaining normal retirement age). The Compensation Committee and Board believe that additional severance benefits are appropriate for executive management because it may be difficult for senior executives to find comparable employment within a short period of time. Thus, for example, as discussed above RSUs that are unvested will be accelerated upon a change in control and upon termination of employment in certain circumstances. In addition, the CEO and other NEOs are entitled to severance compensation upon the termination of their employment in certain circumstances, including upon a change in control, as set forth in their employment agreements. The Compensation Committee believes that providing these change-in-control severance benefits to the CEO and other NEOs should offset any reluctance to pursue potential change in control transactions that may be in the best interests of stockholders.

For additional information on Howard's written agreements with its NEOs that provide severance and change in control benefits, please see "Employment Agreements".

Deductibility of Compensation. Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code limits the tax deductibility of certain compensation in excess of \$1 million paid to Howard's NEOs. Because the compensation paid to Howard's NEOs generally has been under the \$1 million threshold, Section 162(m)'s limits on tax deductibility have not been a significant factor in the Compensation Committee's determinations with respect to compensation of Howard's NEOs. The Compensation Committee does believe it is generally in Howard's best interest, and that of its stockholders, to offer compensation when possible that is deductible under the Internal Revenue Code.

As a result of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "TCJA"), enacted in December 2017, equity awards made after November 2, 2017 generally will not be deductible to the extent that they cause the compensation of the affected executives to exceed \$1 million in any year. Awards that were made and subject to binding written contracts in effect on November 2, 2017, are "grandfathered" under prior law and can qualify as deductible "performance-based compensation," even if paid in future years. The Compensation Committee will continue to monitor these awards and endeavor to ensure that they are deductible if and when paid.

Analysis of Risk Associated with Howard's Compensation Policies and Practices. In making its determinations, the Compensation Committee considers the key enterprise risks to which Howard is subject, including credit, liquidity, market/interest rate, compliance, operational, technology, strategic, reputational and other risks. Based on this assessment, and given the structure of and amounts payable under Howard's executive and other compensation programs, the Compensation Committee has determined that Howard's compensation policies and practices have sufficient mitigating features and controls to maintain an appropriate balance between prudent business risk and resulting compensation, and encourage appropriate risk behavior consistent with Howard's risk appetite, business strategy and profit goals. Mitigating features and controls include the overall compensation mix, weighting of performance metrics, timing of awards in relation to performance measurement period, establishment of targets with payouts at multiple levels of performance, and oversight by executive management and the Board. In addition, Howard's incentive compensation arrangements are subject to a system of internal controls to ensure that incentive compensation is properly tracked, approved and paid. As a result, the Compensation Committee concluded that Howard's compensation policies and practices do not encourage imprudent risk-taking behavior and are consistent with maintaining the organization's safety and soundness.

Compensation Committee Report*

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis required by Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K (the "CD&A") with management and based on the review and discussions with management of the CD&A, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board that the CD&A be included in this proxy statement and incorporated by reference in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Submitted by the Compensation Committee: Paul I. Latta, Jr., Chairman James T. Dresher, Jr. Howard Feinglass Kenneth C. Lundeen Robert W. Smith, Jr. Donna Hill Staton

*The foregoing report of the Compensation Committee is not to be deemed "soliciting material" or deemed to be "filed" with the SEC (irrespective of any general incorporation language in any document filed with the SEC) or subject to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, except to the extent we specifically incorporate it by reference into a document filed with the SEC.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The Compensation Committee is comprised entirely of independent directors and none of our executive officers served on the Compensation Committee or on the board of any company that employed any member of the Compensation Committee or the Board of Directors during the year ended December 31, 2017.

Summary Compensation Table for 2017

The following table sets forth a comprehensive overview of the compensation for the NEOs for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Name and Principal Position Year	Salary (\$)	Bonus (\$)	Stock Awards (\$)(1)	Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation (\$)(2)	Change in Pension Value and Non-Qualifi Deferred Compensation Earnings (\$)(3)	All	Total (\$)
Mary Ann Scully 2017 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Howard and the	\$411,539		\$69,475	\$137,944	\$68,314	\$18,330 (4)	\$705,602
Bank 2016 2015	\$350,000 \$334,231		 \$140,000	 \$70,000	\$1,529,495	\$12,745 \$21,345	\$1,892,240 \$565,576
George C. 2017 Coffman Executive Vice President, Treasurer	\$286,539		\$49,625	\$62,495		\$20,650 (5)	\$419,308
and Chief Financial Officer of Howard and the Bank	\$275,000					\$20,650	\$295,650
2015	\$264,808		\$112,000	\$55,000		\$20,650	\$452,458
Robert A. Altieri Executive Vice President of Howard and the	\$245,000		\$25,805	\$369,192(6)		\$20,970 (7)	\$660,967
Bank 2016 2015	\$245,000 \$245,000		\$112,000	 \$469,734		\$21,770 \$21,050	\$266,770 \$847,784

Schwabe 2017 \$257,092 \$257,092 \$257,092 \$25,010 (0) \$547	
Executive	
Vice	
President #250,000	425
of 2016 \$250,000 \$20,435 \$270	,435
Howard and the	
Bank	
2015 \$246,154 \$112,000 \$37,000 \$20,825 \$415	,979
James D.	
Witty 2017 \$272,115 \$31,760 \$75,668 \$20,499 (9) \$400	,043
Executive	
Vice	
President of	
Howard	
and the	
Bank 2016(10) \$175,577 \$30,000 (11) \$128,000 \$7,715 \$341	,291

The amount shown represents the aggregate grant date fair value, determined in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, Compensation-Stock Compensation, of the stock awards granted to each of the NEOs. The grant date fair value was determined by multiplying the total number of shares of common stock awarded by the closing price of our common stock on Nasdaq on the respective grant date. RSUs were granted to Ms. Scully, Mr. Coffman, Mr. Altieri and Mr. Schwabe in April 2015 and to all the NEOs in July 2017. In accordance with the terms of Mr. Witty's employment agreement, he was granted RSUs in April 2016. All RSUs granted are subject to a three year vesting schedule.

For all NEOs other than Mr. Altieri, represents amounts paid pursuant to the annual incentive plan, based on achievement of Company-wide and individual performance objectives for the year indicated, even if paid in the following year(s). For Mr. Altieri, represents amounts earned under his profit sharing opportunity pursuant to his employment agreement.

Reflects the change in the actuarial present value of accumulated benefits under the SERP, which is discussed in more detail under "Retirement Benefits" in Compensation Discussion and Analysis. The SERP was established in

- (3) late 2014. The present value of Ms. Scully's accumulated benefit has been calculated on the assumption that Ms. Scully's benefit fully vests on August 25, 2019, which has been established for purposes of the SERP as her retirement date.
- (4) Represents \$9,330 in life insurance benefits and a car allowance of \$9,000.
- (5) Represents 10,600 in 401(k) matching contribution, 1,050 in life insurance benefits and a car allowance of 9,000.
- (6) Of the 369,192, 184,596 was paid in January 2018, and the remainder will be paid in equal installments from 2019 to 2021.
- Represents \$9,800 in 401(k) matching contribution, \$2,170 in life insurance benefits and a car allowance of (7)⁵⁰\$9,000.
- (8) Represents 9,738 in 401(k) matching contribution, 4,280 in life insurance benefits and a car allowance of 9,000.
- (9) Represents 9,669 in 401(k) matching contribution, 1,830 in life insurance benefits and a car allowance of 9,000.
- (10)Mr. Witty joined the Company in 2016.
- (11)Represents the signing bonus paid to Mr. Witty in accordance with the terms of his employment agreement. 34

Grants of Plan-Based Awards for 2017

The following table presents information regarding incentive-based cash bonuses and equity awards granted to the NEOs during or for the year ended December 31, 2017, under the Howard Bancorp annual incentive plan (cash) and the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (RSUs) and, in the case of incentive-based awards, reflects the amounts that could be earned or received under such awards:

					All			
					Other			
					Stock			Grant
					Awards:	All Other		Date
		Estimated	l Possible P	ayouts	Number	Option		Fair
		Under			of	Awards:	Exercise	Value
		Non-Equi	ity Incentiv	e Plan	Shares	Number of	or Base	of Stock
		Awards			of	Securities	Price of	and
		(1)			Stock or	Underlying	Option	Option
Name	Grant	Threshold	lTarget	Maximum	Units	Options	Awards	Awards
Name	Date	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(#)(2)	(#)	(\$/Sh)	(\$)(3)
Mary Ann Scully		\$86,000	\$172,000	\$258,000				
7/12/2017					3,500			\$69,475
George Coffman		\$36,250	\$72,500	\$108,750				
7/12/2017					2,500			\$49,625
James Witty		\$35,625	\$76,250	\$106,875				
7/12/2017					1,600			\$31,760
Charles Schwabe		\$26,000	\$52,000	\$78,000				
7/12/2017					1,100			\$21,835
Robert Altieri	7/12/2017				1,300			\$28,805

The amounts shown in these columns reflect possible payouts under the annual incentive plan for 2017. The minimum possible payment level (threshold) ranged from 10% to 20% of the NEO's base salary, and the maximum possible payout ranged from 30% to 60% of the NEO's base salary. Amounts shown are percentages of the base

- (1) salary as in effect on December 31, 2017. The amount of the award actually earned for 2017 is shown under the "Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation" column of the Summary Compensation Table. Mr. Altieri does not participate in the annual incentive plan, but has a separate contractual profit sharing opportunity, as described under "Annual Profit Sharing Opportunity for Mr. Altieri."
- (2)Reflects the number of time-based RSUs granted on July 12, 2017.

Reflects the grant date fair value of the time-based RSUs granted on July 12, 2017, determined in accordance with (3) Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, Compensation-Stock Compensation. The grant date fair value was determined by multiplying the total number of shares of common

⁽⁵⁾Compensation. The grant date fair value was determined by multiplying the total number of shares of common stock awarded by the closing price of our common stock on Nasdaq on the grant date.

Outstanding Equity Awards

The following table discloses information about unexercised options and unvested stock awards outstanding at December 31, 2017 for each of the NEOs.

	Number of Shares of	Market Value of Shares	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Number of Unearned	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Market Value of Unearned
	Stock that	of Stock	Shares	Shares
Grant	have Not	that have	that have Not	that have
	Vested	Not	Vested	Not
Date	(1)	Vested	(2)	Vested
Mory Ann Soully				
Mary Ann Scully 4/30/2015	¢ 1 666	\$26 (52	1 666	\$ 26 652
	\$1,666	\$36,652	1,666	\$ 36,652
7/12/2017	\$3,500	\$77,000	-	\$ -
	\$5,166	\$113,652	1,666	\$ 36,652
George C. Coffma	an			
4/30/2015	\$1,000	\$22,000	1,666	\$ 36,652
7/12/2017	\$2,500	\$55,000	-	\$ -
	, ,			
	\$3,500	\$77,000	1,666	\$ 36,652
Robert A. Altieri				
4/30/2015	\$1,000	\$22,000	1,666	\$ 36,652
7/12/2017	\$1,000	\$28,600	1,000	\$ 50,052 \$ -
//12/2017	φ1,500	φ <i>2</i> 0,000	-	φ-
	\$2,300	\$50,600	1,666	\$ 36,652
Charles E. Sahua	ha			
Charles E. Schwal 4/30/2015	\$ 1,000	\$22,000	1 666	\$ 26 657
4/30/2013 7/12/2017	-		1,666	\$ 36,652 \$
//12/2017	\$1,100	\$24,200	-	\$ -
	\$2,100	\$46,200	1,666	\$ 36,652
James D. Witty				
4/30/2016	6,666	146,652	-	-
7/10/2017	1,000	25 200		

_

_

35,200

7/12/2017

1,600

\$8,266 \$181,852 - \$-

For each grant on 4/30/2015, the shares vest on 4/30/2018. For the grant on 4/30/2016 with respect to Mr. Witty, 3,333 shares vest on each of 4/30/2018 and 4/30/2019. For the grant on 7/12/2017, (A) 1,167 shares vest on each of 7/21/2018 and 7/12/2019 and 1,666 shares vest on 7/12/2020 with respect to Ms. Scully, (B) 833 shares vest on each of 07/12/2018 and 07/12/2019 and 834 shares vest on 7/12/2020 with respect to Mr. Coffman (C) 433 shares

- (1) each of 07/12/2018 and 07/12/2019 and 834 shares vest on 7/12/2020 with respect to Mr. Coffman, (C) 433 shares vest on each of 07/12/2018 and 07/12/2019 and 434 shares vest on 7/12/2020 with respect to Mr. Altieri, (D) 367 shares vest on each of 07/12/2018 and 07/12/2019 and 366 shares vest on 7/12/2020 with respect to Mr. Schwabe and (E) 533 shares vest on each of 07/12/2018 and 07/12/2018 and 07/12/2019 and 534 shares vest on 7/12/2020 with respect to Mr. Schwabe and (E) 533 shares vest on each of 07/12/2018 and 07/12/2019 and 534 shares vest on 7/12/2020 with respect to Mr. Schwabe and (E) 533 shares vest on each of 07/12/2018 and 07/12/2019 and 534 shares vest on 7/12/2020 with respect to Mr. Schwabe and (E) 533 shares vest on each of 07/12/2018 and 07/12/2019 and 534 shares vest on 7/12/2020 with respect to Mr. Schwabe and (E) 533 shares vest on each of 07/12/2018 and 07/12/2019 and 534 shares vest on 7/12/2020 with respect to Mr. Schwabe and (E) 533 shares vest on each of 07/12/2018 and 07/12/2019 and 534 shares vest on 7/12/2020 with respect to Mr. Witty.
- For each grant on 4/30/2015, assuming pre-established performance metrics for the prior year are met or the Board (2) of Directors uses its discretionary authority to permit such shares to be earned in the absence of meeting such performance metrics, the shares vest on 04/30/2018.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested for 2017

The following table sets forth the number of RSUs that vested for our NEOs in 2017 and the aggregate value realized upon the vesting of RSUs during 2017. None of the NEOs held any stock options during 2017.

STOCK AWARDS

	Number of	
	Shares	
	Acquired	Value
	on	Realized on
Name	Vesting(1)	Vesting(\$)(2)
Mary Ann Scully	3,333	62,494
George C. Coffman	2,000	37,500
Robert A. Altieri	2,000	37,500
Charles E. Schwabe	2,000	37,500
James D. Witty	3,334	62,513

(1) This amount represents the total number of shares that vested.

(2) This amount was determined by multiplying the total number of shares of common stock underlying the RSUs by the closing price of our common stock on Nasdaq on the date the RSUs vested.

Pension Benefits for 2017

The SERP provides retirement benefits to eligible participants, which are limited to highly compensated employees as determined by the Board. Currently, eligibility to participate in the SERP has been granted solely to Ms. Scully. The SERP is discussed in more detail under "Retirement Benefits" in Compensation Discussion and Analysis. The following table shows the present value at December 31, 2017, of accumulated benefits payable to Ms. Scully, including the number of years of service credited, under the SERP. The present value of her accumulated benefit shown in the table has been calculated on the assumption that Ms. Scully's benefit fully vests on August 25, 2019, which has been established for purposes of the SERP as her retirement date.

		Number		Payments
		of Years	Present Value	During
		Credited	of	Last
		Service	Accumulated	Fiscal
Name	Plan Name	(#)	Benefit (1)(\$)	Year (\$)
Mary Ann Sc	ully Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan	12	1,591,809	\$
(1) The present value of accumulated benefit is based on the planned payment of \$150,000				
each year for 15 years once Ms. Scully begins to receive her benefit at normal retirement age				
under the plan, which is then discounted back to December 31, 2017.				

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

The following table describes the potential payments that would be made to each of the NEOs in various termination and change in control scenarios based on compensation, benefit and equity levels in effect on December 31, 2017. The amounts shown are estimates, and assume that the termination or change in control event occurred on December 31, 2017. The amounts to be paid can only be determined at the time of an NEO's actual termination of employment or an actual change in control of Howard.

In accordance with SEC regulations, the following table does not report any amount to be provided to an NEO that does not discriminate in scope, terms or operation in favor of Howard's executive officers and which is available

generally to all salaried employees, and excludes (i) amounts accrued through December 31, 2017, that would be paid in the normal course of continued employment, such as accrued but unpaid salary and bonus amounts, (ii) vested account balances under the 401(k) plan and, for Ms. Scully, the SERP, and (iii) already vested equity awards. 37

If Howard Bank terminates the NEO's employment without cause or the NEO terminates his or her employment for good reason, and a change in control has not occurred, the NEO is entitled to receive an amount equal to his or her current base salary plus all benefits he or she is then receiving for a period equal to the remaining term of the employment agreement plus any incentive compensation already accrued for that year. In addition, all unvested stock awards will immediately vest upon the effective date of such termination. These benefits also generally apply if the termination of employment is due to permanent disability, although in that event the amount payable will be reduced if and to the extent the NEO receives payments under any disability insurance or other program maintained by Howard Bank.

If, within 12 months following a change in control, the NEO's employment is terminated by the NEO for any reason or by Howard Bank without cause, all NEOs other than Mr. Witty are entitled to: (i) a lump sum payment equal to the sum of (a) a multiplier (2.99 for Ms. Scully and Messrs. Coffman and Schwabe, and 2.00 for Mr. Altieri) of his or her average annual compensation (consisting of base pay and bonus) during the most recent three years minus the aggregate present value of any other payments he or she receives that are treated as contingent upon the change in control (not including the amounts in clauses (ii), (iii) and (iv) of this sentence), and (b) a pro-rated bonus; (ii) immediate vesting of all stock awards; (iii) immediate exercisability of any unexercised stock options; and (iv) continued medical coverage for the remaining term of the agreement as available to the Bank's other employees. In this scenario, Mr. Witty is entitled to: (i) a lump sum payment equal to the sum of (a) 1.5 times his average base salary and (b) average bonus during the current and two prior years; (ii) immediate vesting of all stock awards; (iii) a soft years; (ii) immediate vesting of all stock awards; (iii) a lump sum payment equal to the sum of (a) 1.5 times his average base salary and (b) average bonus during the current and two prior years; (ii) immediate vesting of all stock awards; (iii)

In addition, to the extent not already fully vested, Ms. Scully will fully vest in her benefit if the Bank terminates the SERP following a change in control. Upon a termination without cause, Ms. Scully would be entitled to payment of her vested balance, but would forfeit any benefits under the SERP in which she has not previously vested.

For further detail regarding applicable contractual terms that would determine the amount of benefits payable upon a termination of employment, see the description of employment agreements with our NEOs under "Employment Agreements" below, as well as "Retirement Benefits" in Compensation Discussion and Analysis above.

		Non-CIC	
		Termination by	CIC
		Company	Termination by
Name		Without Cause or	Company
Inallie		by Executive for Good	Without Cause or
	Incremental Compensation and Benefit	Reason under	by Executive under
	Payments	Agreement	Agreement
Mary Ann			
Scully	Severance	\$931,668	\$1,333,484
	Stock Awards – Accelerated Vesting	\$75,306	\$75,306
	Continuing Medical Coverage	\$65,000	\$65,000
	280G Gross-Up Payment or 280G Cutback		
	(1)	\$0	\$678,319
	Totals	\$1,071,974	\$2,152,109
George			
Coffman	Severance	\$628,333	\$954,303
	Stock Awards – Accelerated Vesting	\$55,456	\$55,456
	Continuing Medical Coverage	\$65,000	\$65,000
	280G Gross-Up Payment or 280G Cutback		
	(1)	\$0	\$470,875

	Totals	\$748,789	\$1,545,634	
D - 1				
Robert Altieri	Severance	\$541,667	\$926,220	
	Stock Awards – Accelerated Vesting	\$31,636	\$31,636	
	Continuing Medical Coverage	\$65,000	\$65,000	
	280G Gross-Up Payment or 280G Cutback			
	(1)	\$0	\$572,491	
	Totals	\$638,303	\$1,595,347	
Charles				
Schwabe	Severance	\$563,333	\$839,018	
	Stock Awards – Accelerated Vesting	\$27,666	\$27,666	
	Continuing Medical Coverage	\$65,000	\$65,000	
	280G Gross-Up Payment or 280G Cutback			
	(1)	\$0	\$398,947	
	Totals	\$655,999	\$1,330,631	
James Witty	Severance	\$427,500	\$392,632	
	Stock Awards – Accelerated Vesting	\$92,198	\$92,198	
	Continuing Medical Coverage	\$7,500	\$45,000	
	280G Gross-Up Payment or 280G Cutback			
	(1)		\$(106,619)
	Totals	\$527,198	\$529,830	ĺ

For all NEOs other than Mr. Witty, if any severance payment or distribution made to the NEO is determined to be subject to the limitations of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (a "Parachute Payment"), the NEO will also be entitled to a full tax "gross-up" to cover any excise taxes on such amount (a "280G Gross-Up Payment"), unless the total value of all such payments and benefits (as measured for purposes of Section (1)280G) exceeds the threshold to which 280G excise tax would apply (the "280G threshold") by 10% or less, in which event the payments and benefits will instead be reduced so as to fall below the 280G threshold (a "280G Cutback"). If any severance payment or distribution made to Mr. Witty is determined to be a Parachute Payment and the total value of all such payments and benefits (as measured for purposes of Section 280G) exceeds the 280G threshold by any amount, a 280G Cutback will be applied so that the payments and benefits fall below the 280G threshold.

38

)

2017 CEO Pay Ratio Disclosure

For 2017, the ratio of the total compensation of Howard's median employee to the CEO's total compensation was 1 to 11.64. To calculate this ratio, Howard identified its median employee as of December 31, 2017 based on employees' gross earnings as reported on Internal Revenue Service Form W-2. Once identified, the median employee's total compensation for 2017 was determined in accordance with Item 402(c)(2)(x) of Regulation S-K to be \$60,600, as compared to total compensation of \$705,602 for Howard's CEO.

Employment Agreements

The following summarizes the material terms of the employment agreements between the NEOs and Howard.

Chief Executive Officer - Mary Ann Scully

Howard Bank entered into an amended and restated employment agreement with Mary Ann Scully on December 18, 2008 pursuant to which Ms. Scully serves as Chief Executive Officer of Howard and Howard Bank.

The amended and restated employment agreement provided for an initial term expiring on March 31, 2011 and, unless written notice that the agreement will not be renewed is provided to Ms. Scully, is renewed for an additional year on each subsequent March 31 (beginning on March 31, 2009), such that the remaining term at each renewal will be three years. Ms. Scully's term of employment is currently extended through March 31, 2021.

Ms. Scully's employment agreement provides for an initial annual salary subject to annual increases as may be determined by Howard Bank's Board of Directors. Ms. Scully's current annual salary is set at \$530,000. Ms. Scully is also entitled to a bonus as determined each year by the Bank's board of directors and to participate in any other bonus, incentive and other executive compensation programs as are made available to the Bank's executive management. The agreement also provides that Ms. Scully is not compensated for her services as a director. Howard Bank may terminate Ms. Scully's employment under the agreement for certain events constituting Cause as defined in the agreement. In addition, Howard Bank may terminate the agreement without Cause or upon Ms. Scully's Permanent Disability as defined in the agreement, in each case upon written notice to Ms. Scully. Ms. Scully may terminate her employment at any time under the agreement.

If Howard Bank terminates Ms. Scully's employment without Cause or upon Ms. Scully's Permanent Disability, or Ms. Scully terminates her employment for Good Reason or upon her Permanent Disability, and a Change in Control, as defined in the agreement, has not occurred, then Ms. Scully will be entitled to receive an amount equal to her current base salary plus all benefits she is then receiving for a period equal to the remaining term of the agreement plus any incentive compensation already accrued for that year. In addition, all of her stock awards and stock options shall immediately vest upon the effective date of such termination. If the termination is due to Permanent Disability, then such amount payable will be reduced if and to the extent that Ms. Scully receives payments under any disability insurance or other program maintained by Howard Bank.

If, within 12 months following a Change in Control, Ms. Scully's employment is terminated under the agreement by Ms. Scully for any reason or by Howard Bank without Cause, then, instead of the payments provided for above, Ms. Scully will be entitled to: (i) a lump sum payment equal to the sum of (a) 2.99 times her average annual compensation (consisting of base pay and bonus) during the most recent three years minus the aggregate present value of any other payments she receives that are treated as contingent upon the Change in Control (not including (ii), (iii) and (iv) of this sentence), and (b) a pro-rated bonus; (ii) immediate vesting of all stock awards; (iii) immediate exercisability of any unexercised stock options; and (iv) continued medical coverage for the remaining term of the agreement as available to the Bank's other employees.

If any severance payment or distribution made to Ms. Scully is determined to be subject to the limitations of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (a "Parachute Payment"), Ms. Scully will be entitled to a full tax "gross-up" to cover any excise taxes on such amount, unless the total value of all such payments and benefits (as measured for purposes of Section 280G) exceeds the taxable threshold by 10% or less, in which event the payments and benefits will instead be reduced so as to fall below the taxable threshold.

Ms. Scully's employment also terminates upon mutual agreement of the parties or immediately upon her death. If her employment is terminated upon death, all of Ms. Scully's stock awards and stock options shall immediately vest.

The agreement also contains confidentiality, non-compete and non-solicitation provisions.

Executive Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer - George C. Coffman

On December 18, 2008, Howard Bank entered into amended and restated employment agreement with Mr. Coffman pursuant to which he serves as an Executive Vice President of Howard Bank.

The amended and restated employment agreement provides for an initial term expiring on March 31, 2011 and, unless written notice that the agreement will not be renewed is provided to the executive, is renewed for an additional year on each subsequent March 31 (beginning on March 31, 2009), such that the remaining term at each renewal will be three years. The term of Mr. Coffman's employment is currently extended through March 31, 2021.

Mr. Coffman's employment agreement provides for an initial annual salary, subject to annual increases as may be determined by the Bank's board of directors. Mr. Coffman's current annual salary is set at \$300,000. Mr. Coffman is also entitled to a bonus as determined each year by the Bank's board of directors and to participate in any other bonus, incentive and other executive compensation programs as are made available to the Bank's executive management.

The other substantive provisions of Mr. Coffman's employment agreement are substantially the same as those of Ms. Scully's employment agreement as described above.

Executive Vice President - Robert A. Altieri

On September 30, 2014, Howard Bank entered into an amended and restated employment agreement with Mr. Altieri pursuant to which he serves as an Executive Vice President of Howard Bank.

The employment agreement provides for an initial term expiring on March 31, 2020 and, unless written notice that the agreement will not be renewed is provided to Mr. Altieri, is renewed for an additional year on each subsequent March 31st (beginning on March 31, 2018), such that the remaining term at each renewal will be three years. The term of Mr. Altieri's employment is currently extended through March 31, 2021.

Mr. Altieri's employment agreement provides for an initial annual salary, subject to annual increases as may be determined by the Bank's board of directors, a signing bonus of \$50,000 that was paid during 2014, the Profit Sharing Award (as described above under "Annual Profit Sharing Opportunity for Mr. Altieri"), and restricted stock units with respect to 5,000 shares of the Company's common stock vesting in three annual installments beginning on April 30, 2014. Mr. Altieri's current annual salary is set at \$250,000. Mr. Altieri is also entitled to a monthly car allowance of \$750 and to participate in any bonus, incentive and other executive compensation programs as are made available to the Bank's executive management.

Howard Bank may terminate Mr. Altieri's employment under the agreement for certain events constituting Cause as defined in the agreement. In addition, Howard Bank may terminate the agreement without Cause or upon Mr. Altieri's Permanent Disability as defined in the agreement, in each case upon written notice to Mr. Altieri. Mr. Altieri may terminate his employment at any time under the agreement.

If Howard Bank terminates Mr. Altieri's employment without Cause, Mr. Altieri terminates his employment for Good Reason or Howard Bank or Mr. Altieri terminate the agreement due to Mr. Altieri's Permanent Disability, and a Change in Control, as defined in the agreement, has not occurred, then Mr. Altieri will be entitled to receive an amount equal to his current base salary plus all benefits then received for a period equal to the remaining term of the agreement, plus any incentive compensation, as defined in the agreement, that may have accrued in the calendar year in which Mr. Altieri was terminated.

If, within 12 months following a Change in Control, Mr. Altieri's employment is terminated under the agreement by Mr. Altieri or by Howard Bank without Cause, then Mr. Altieri will be entitled to: (i) a lump sum payment equal to the sum of (a) the excess of (x) two times his average annual compensation (as defined in the agreement) over (y) the aggregate present value of all other payments to Mr. Altieri in the nature of compensation (not including (ii), (iii) and (iv) of this sentence) plus (b) an annual bonus equal to the greater of target or actual bonus for the year in which employment terminates, pro-rated for the months elapsed in the annual bonus period at the time employment terminates; (ii) immediate vesting of all stock awards; (iii) immediate exercisability of any unexercised stock options; and (iv) continued medical coverage for a period equal to the remaining term of the agreement as is available to the Bank's other employees.

If any severance payment or distribution made to Mr. Altieri is determined to be a Parachute Payment and the total value of all such payments and benefits (as measured for purposes of Section 280G) exceeds the taxable threshold, but equal to or less than 110% of the taxable threshold, the payments and benefits will be reduced so as to fall below the taxable threshold. If such payments exceeds the taxable threshold, but is greater than 110% of the taxable threshold, then Mr. Altieri will be entitled to receive an additional payment in an amount such that after payment by Mr. Altieri of all taxes, he retains an amount of such payment equal to the Excise Tax imposed on the Parachute Payments.

In addition, Mr. Altieri may terminate his employment for any reason, upon 30 days' prior written notice, within 12 months following a Change in Control. Mr. Altieri's employment also terminates upon mutual agreement of the parties or immediately upon his death. If his employment is terminated upon death, all of Mr. Altieri's stock awards and stock options will immediately vest.

The agreement also contains confidentiality, non-compete and non-solicitation provisions.

Executive Vice President and Secretary - Charles E. Schwabe

On December 18, 2008, Howard Bank entered into an amended and restated employment agreement with Mr. Schwabe pursuant to which he serves as an Executive Vice President of Howard Bank.

The amended and restated employment agreement provided for an initial term expiring on March 31, 2011 and, unless written notice that the agreement will not be renewed is provided to Ms. Schwabe, is renewed for an additional year

on each subsequent March 31 (beginning on March 31, 2009), such that the remaining term at each renewal will be three years. Ms. Schwabe's term of employment is currently extended through March 31, 2021.

Mr. Schwabe's employment agreement provides for an initial annual salary, subject to annual increases as may be determined by the Bank's board of directors and a yearly bonus as determined each year by the Bank's board of directors. Mr. Schwabe's current annual salary is set at \$275,000. Mr. Schwabe is also entitled to participate in any bonus, incentive and other executive compensation programs as are made available to the Bank's executive management.

The other substantive provisions of Mr. Schwabe's employment agreement are substantially the same as those of Ms. Scully's employment agreement as described above.

Executive Vice President - James D. Witty

On April 29, 2016, Howard Bank entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Witty pursuant to which he serves as an Executive Vice President of Howard Bank.

The employment agreement provides for an initial term expiring on March 31, 2018 and, unless written notice that the agreement will not be renewed is provided to Mr. Witty, is renewed for an additional year on each subsequent March 31st. The term of Mr. Witty's employment is currently extended through March 31, 2019.

Mr. Witty's employment agreement provides for an initial annual salary, subject to annual increases as may be determined by the Bank's board of directors, a signing bonus of \$30,000 that was paid during 2016, and restricted stock units with respect to 10,000 shares of the Company's common stock vesting in three annual installments beginning on April 29, 2017. Mr. Witty's current annual salary is set at \$300,000. Mr. Witty is also entitled to a monthly car allowance of \$750 and to participate in any bonus, incentive and other executive compensation programs as are made available to the Bank's executive management.

Howard Bank may terminate Mr. Witty's employment under the agreement for certain events constituting Cause as defined in the agreement. In addition, Howard Bank may terminate the agreement without Cause or upon Mr. Witty's Permanent Disability as defined in the agreement, in each case upon written notice to Mr. Witty. Mr. Witty may terminate his employment at any time under the agreement.

If Howard Bank terminates Mr. Witty's employment without Cause or Mr. Witty terminates his employment for Good Reason, and a Change in Control, as defined in the agreement, has not occurred, then Mr. Witty will be entitled to receive a monthly amount equal to 1/12th of the sum of (i) his average base salary during the current and two prior fiscal years and (ii) his average bonus (not including the signing bonus) during the current and prior two fiscal years for a period equal to the greater of the remaining term of the agreement or one year.

If, within 12 months following a Change in Control, Mr. Witty's employment is terminated under the agreement by Mr. Witty for Good Reason or by Howard Bank without Cause, then Mr. Witty will be entitled to: (i) a lump sum payment equal to the sum of (a) 1.5 times his average base salary and (b) average bonus during the current and two prior years; (ii) immediate vesting of all stock awards; (iii) immediate exercisability of any unexercised stock options; and (iv) continued medical coverage for 18 months as is available to the Bank's other employees.

If Mr. Witty's employment is terminated by him or the Bank upon his Permanent Disability, as defined in the agreement, then Mr. Witty will be entitled to: (i) a one-time payment equal to the greater of his target or actual bonus for the year in which his employment terminates, pro-rated for the months elapsed in the annual bonus period at the time his employment terminated; (ii) a monthly amount equal to 1/12th of his then-current base salary for a period equal to the lesser of (a) the remaining term of the agreement or (b) the date on which he begins to receive payments under any disability insurance or other program maintained by the Bank; (iii) continued health, dental, vision and disability insurance, profit sharing plans, retirement and all other benefits he was receiving at the time his employment was terminated, or the value thereof, for a period equal to the lesser of (a) the remaining term of (b) the date on which he begins to receive payment was terminated, or the value thereof, for a period equal to the lesser of (a) the remaining term of the agreement or (b) the date on which he begins to receive payment was terminated, or the value thereof, for a period equal to the lesser of (a) the remaining term of the agreement or (b) the date on which he begins to receive payments under any disability insurance or other program maintained by the Bank; (iv) immediate vesting of all stock awards; and (v) immediate exercisability of any unexercised stock options.

If any severance payment or distribution made to Mr. Witty is determined to a Parachute Payment and the total value of all such payments and benefits (as measured for purposes of Section 280G) exceeds the taxable threshold, the payments and benefits will be reduced so as to fall below the taxable threshold. 42

In addition, Mr. Witty may terminate his employment for any reason, upon 30 days' prior written notice, within 12 months following a Change in Control. Mr. Witty's employment also terminates upon mutual agreement of the parties or immediately upon his death. If his employment is terminated upon death, all of Mr. Witty's stock awards and stock options will immediately vest.

The agreement also contains confidentiality, non-compete and non-solicitation provisions.

Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth certain information as of December 31, 2017, with respect to compensation plans under which equity securities of Howard are authorized for issuance:

Equity Compensation Plan Information

			Number of
	Number of		securities
	securities to	Weighted	remaining
	be issued	average	available for
	upon	exercise	future
	exercise of	price of	issuance
	outstanding	outstanding	under equity
	options, and	options, and	compensation
Plan Category	rights	rights	plans (1)
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders (2)	11,250	\$ 10.38	639,092
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders (3)	19,741	\$ 9.29	0
Total	30,991	\$ 9.69	639,092

In addition to the outstanding 30,991 options, as of December 31, 2017 there were 52,155 restricted stock units, (1)payable in common stock upon vesting, outstanding under the Equity Compensation Plan that have been included in the calculation of the securities remaining available for future issuance.

Includes our 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, which was approved by our stockholders on May 29, 2013, and our 2004 (2) Incentive Stock Option Plan, which was approved by security holders of Howard Bank. Effective December 15, 2005, all of the then stockholders of Howard Bank became stockholders of Howard.

Includes our 2004 Stock Incentive Plan. The 2004 Stock Incentive Plan permits the granting of nonstatutory stock options (but not incentive stock options within the meaning of Code section 422), stock appreciation rights, restricted or unrestricted stock awards, phantom stock, performance awards, other stock-based awards, or any combination of the foregoing. Participation in the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan is open to all employees, officers, and directors of, and other individuals providing bona fide services to or for, the Company, or of any affiliate of the Company, as may be selected by the plan Administrator from time to time. The Administrator may also grant

(3) awards pursuant to the plan to individuals in connection with hiring, retention or otherwise, prior to the date the individual first performs services for the Company or an Affiliate, provided that such Awards shall not become vested or exercisable prior to the date the individual first commences performance of such services. 200,000 shares of our common stock were reserved for issuance under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, subject to adjustment. Also includes options granted under employment agreements between Howard Bank and each executive officer dated as of August 9, 2004. Under the terms of each employment agreement, each executive officer was granted options upon the effective dates of the agreements and upon issuances of additional shares of common stock for the primary purpose of increasing equity capital.

ITEM 2: NON-BINDING ADVISORY VOTE ON THE COMPENSATION OF OUR NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Compensation of the executive officers of the Company is determined by the Board of Directors based upon recommendations of and through its Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee is comprised of independent non-employee directors, and its role and composition are further described in this Proxy Statement under "Compensation Committee." The Compensation Committee overview contained in this Proxy Statement describes the Company's executive compensation philosophy, including core principles and objectives, and how it has been implemented. The compensation paid by the Company to its named executive officers is described in this Proxy Statement under "Executive Compensation."

Pursuant to Section 14A of the Exchange Act, we are providing our stockholders with the opportunity to express their views, on a non-binding, advisory basis, on the compensation of our named executive officers as disclosed in this proxy statement. We first held this vote, which is often referred to as the "say-on-pay" vote, at our annual meeting of stockholders held in 2013. At such meeting, consistent with the Board of Directors' recommendation, our stockholders voted to hold the say-on-pay vote on an annual basis; therefore, our Board of Directors determined that the Company will hold future non-binding advisory votes on the compensation of our named executive officers every year, until the next required vote on the frequency of stockholder votes on the compensation of our named executive officers, which will be in 2019. This vote provides stockholders with the opportunity to endorse or not endorse the compensation of our named executive officers by voting on the following non-binding, advisory resolution:

RESOLVED, that the stockholders of Howard Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company") approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation of the Company's named executive officers as disclosed in the compensation tables and related material in the Proxy Statement for the 2018 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Approval of the non-binding, advisory proposal regarding the compensation of our named executive officers requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on the matter at the Meeting. Directors and executive officers of the Company as a group have the power to vote or direct the voting of 4,395,758 shares of our common stock, or approximately 23.15% of the shares of common stock outstanding on the record date, and have indicated their intention to vote "FOR" the approval of the non-binding, advisory proposal to approve the compensation of our named executive officers.

Because the vote is advisory, it will not be binding upon the Board of Directors or the Compensation Committee and may not be construed as overruling a decision by the Board or the Compensation Committee, or create or imply any additional fiduciary duty on the Board. It will also not affect any compensation paid or awarded to any executive. The Board of Directors and its Compensation Committee may, however, take into account the outcome of the vote when considering future executive compensation arrangements.

The Board of Directors believes that the Company's executive compensation program is reasonable in comparison both to similar sized companies in the industry and to the Company's performance, and that it strongly aligns the interests of the Company's executive officers with the interests of the Company's stockholders in the creation of long-term value of the Company as well as the components that drive long-term value.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" APPROVAL OF THE NON-BINDING ADVISORY RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE COMPENSATION OF OUR NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AS DESCRIBED IN THIS PROXY STATEMENT.

ITEM 3. RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has selected Dixon Hughes Goodman, independent registered public accounting firm, to audit the Company's financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2018. Dixon Hughes Goodman merged with Stegman & Company during 2016. Dixon Hughes Goodman audited the financial statements of the Company and Howard Bank for 2017 and 2016, while Stegman & Company had audited the financial statements of the Company and Howard Bank from their organization through the fiscal year ending December 31, 2015. Representatives of Dixon Hughes Goodman are expected to be present at the Meeting and be available to respond to appropriate questions. The representatives also will be provided with an opportunity to make a statement, if they desire.

If the stockholders fail to ratify this appointment, the Audit Committee will reconsider whether to retain Dixon Hughes Goodman and may retain that firm or another firm without resubmitting the matter to the Company's stockholders. Even if the appointment is ratified, the Audit Committee may, in its discretion, direct the appointment of different independent registered public accounting firm at any time during the year if it determines that such change would be in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders.

Ratification of Dixon Goodman Hughes requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on the matter at the Meeting. Directors and executive officers of the Company as a group have the power to vote or direct the voting of 4,395,758 shares of our common stock, or approximately 23.15% of the shares of common stock outstanding on the record date, and have indicated their intention to vote "FOR" the ratification of Dixon Hughes Goodman.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF DIXON GOODMAN HUGHES LLP AS INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM TO AUDIT THE COMPANY'S 2018 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

Audit Committee Report*

The Audit Committee has been appointed to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling the Board's oversight responsibilities by reviewing the financial information that will be provided to the stockholders and others, the systems of internal controls established by management and the Board, and the independence and performance of the Company's audit process.

The Audit Committee has:

(1) reviewed and discussed with management the audited financial statements included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K;

(2) discussed with Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP, the Company's independent registered public accounting firm, the matters required to be discussed by statement of Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended, as adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, and has received the written disclosures and the letter from Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP, as required by applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the independent registered public accounting firm's communication with the Audit Committee concerning independence; and

(3) discussed with Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP its independence.

Based on these reviews and discussions, the Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that the audited financial statements be included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Audit Committee has also considered whether the amount and nature of non-audit services provided by Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP is compatible with the auditor's

independence.

Submitted by the Audit Committee: John J. Keenan, Chairman W. Gary Dorsch Michael B. High Paul I. Latta, Jr. Thomas P. O'Neill

*The foregoing report of the Audit Committee is not to be deemed "soliciting material" or deemed to be "filed" with the SEC (irrespective of any general incorporation language in any document filed with the SEC) or subject to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act, or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, except to the extent we specifically incorporate the text of such report by reference into a document filed with the SEC. 45

Fees to Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The following is a summary of the fees billed to the Company by Dixon Hughes Goodman for professional services rendered for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Audit fees. The aggregate amount of fees billed by Dixon Hughes Goodman for services provided in connection with the audit of the Company's financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was \$292,737 and \$167,821, respectively.

Audit-Related Fees. There were no fees billed by Dixon Hughes Goodman for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the audit or review of the Company's financial statements that are not included under "Audit Fees" above.

Tax fees. The aggregate amount of fees billed by Dixon Hughes Goodman for services provided in connection with tax preparation, tax compliance, tax planning and tax advice for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was \$32,410 and \$9,000, respectively.

All Other Fees. There were no other professional services provided by Dixon Hughes Goodman during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Our Audit Committee approves the engagement before the Company or Howard Bank engages the independent registered public accounting firm to render any audit or non-audit services, except under the de-minimis exception as detailed under the "Audit Committee" description above.

OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Directors of the Company is not aware of any other matters to be presented for action by stockholders at the Meeting. If, however, any other matters not now known are properly brought before the Meeting or any adjournment thereof, the persons named in the accompanying proxy will vote such proxy in accordance with their judgment on such matters.

STOCKHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has established procedures for stockholder communications with the Board of Directors. Stockholders may communicate with the Board by writing to the following:

Lead Independent Director Howard Bancorp, Inc. 3301 Boston Street Baltimore, MD 2122

All communications that relate to matters that are within the scope of responsibilities of the Board will be forwarded to the non-employee directors. Communications relating to matters within the responsibility of one of the committees of the Board will be forwarded to the Chair of the appropriate committee. Communications relating to ordinary business matters are not within the scope of the Board's responsibilities and will be forwarded to the appropriate Company officer. Solicitations, advertising materials and frivolous or inappropriate communications will not be forwarded.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Howard Bank and the Company may engage in transactions in the ordinary course of business with some of its directors, executive officers, holders of five percent or more of any class of our securities and entities and individuals affiliated with those persons. In addition, Howard Bank has had in the past, and may have in the future, banking transactions, including making loans to and loan guarantees on behalf of, with directors, executive officers, holders of five percent or more of any class of our securities and the business and professional organizations with which they are associated in the ordinary course of business. All such transactions will be made on terms that are no less favorable to us than those that could be obtained at the time from unaffiliated third parties and otherwise in accordance with applicable law. Further, any loans, loan commitments and loan guarantees are and will be made in accordance with all applicable laws and on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable loans to unrelated persons. In addition, a majority of our independent directors must approve all material affiliated transactions and loans that are in excess of \$500,000, including any forgiveness of loans, with our directors, executive officers, holders of five percent or more of any class of five percent or more of any class of our securities, and entities and individuals affiliated with such persons.

In the opinion of management, these transactions do not and will not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable features. Directors or officers with any personal interest in any loan application are excluded from considering any such loan application. The aggregate amount of loans outstanding to Howard Bank's directors, executive officers and their affiliates at December 31, 2017 was approximately \$19.3 million.

SECTION 16(A) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

The federal securities laws require that our directors and executive officers and persons holding more than ten percent of our outstanding shares of common stock report their ownership and changes in such ownership on Forms 3, 4 and 5 to the SEC and to us. SEC rules require disclosure in the Company's proxy statement or Annual Report on Form 10-K

of the failure of an officer, director or ten percent beneficial owner to file a Form 3, 4 or 5 on a timely basis. Relying on representations of its directors and executive officers subject to Section 16 and copies of reports filed with the SEC, we believe that no director, executive officer of the Company failed to timely file such ownership reports during the year ended December 31, 2017. We were not aware of any persons holding more than ten percent of our standing shares of common stock during the year ended December 31, 2017.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS AND NOMINATIONS FOR THE HOWARD 2019 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

In order to be included in the proxy materials for the Company's 2019 annual meeting of stockholders, stockholder proposals submitted to the Company in compliance with SEC Rule 14a-8 (which concerns stockholder proposals that are requested to be included in a company's proxy statement) must be received in written form at our executive offices on or before January 23, 2019. In order to curtail controversy as to compliance with this requirement, stockholders are urged to submit proposals to the Secretary of the Company by Certified Mail—Return Receipt Requested.

Pursuant to the proxy rules under the Exchange Act, we hereby notify our stockholders that the notice of any stockholder proposal or nomination to be submitted outside of the Rule 14a-8 process for consideration at the 2019 annual meeting of stockholders must be received by our Secretary between January 23, 2019 and February 22, 2019; provided, however, that if less than 100 days' prior public disclosure of the date of the meeting is made by the Company, any such notice by a stockholder must be so received not later than the 10th day following the day on which such prior public disclosure of the meeting is first made by the Company. As to all such matters which we do not have notice on or prior to that date, discretionary authority to vote on such proposal will be granted to the persons designated in the Company's proxy related to the 2019 annual meeting of stockholders.